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Record plc 

PRESS RELEASE 

12 June 2012 

FINAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2012 

Record plc, the specialist currency manager, today announces its audited results for the year 
ended 31 March 2012. 

Financial highlights: 

 AuME1 $30.9bn at 31 March 2012 (down 2%) 

 AuME £19.3bn at 31 March 2012 (down 2%) 

 Management fee income of £20.4m (down 27%) 

 Pre-tax profit of £6.7m (down 46%) 

 Financial position remains strong with net assets of £28.6m at 31 March 2012 
(2011:£30.1m); net cash of £24.6m (2011: £24.7m) 

 Operating profit margin to 31 March 2012 of 32% compared to 44% for the year 
ended 31 March 2011 

 Basic EPS of 2.23p per share (2011: 4.03p) 

 Proposed final dividend for the year to 31 March 2012 is 0.75p per share giving a 
total dividend in respect of the period of 1.50p per share (2011: 4.59p). 

Key Points: 

 Passive hedging AuME grew by 20% in the year - including three new clients 

 Client numbers fell to 41 by 31 March 2012 (2011: 46) 

 Dynamic Hedging continued to perform in line with client expectations 

                                                      

1 As a currency manager Record manages only the impact of foreign exchange and not the underlying assets, 
therefore its “assets under management” are notional rather than real.  To distinguish this from the AuM of 
conventional asset managers, Record uses the concept of Assets under Management Equivalents (AuME) and by 
convention this is quoted in US dollars. 
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 Positive investment performance in the year from Active FRB1 and FRB Index 
strategies 

 Expanded range of eight products including two hedging and six return seeking 
strategies, plus a currency multi-strategy capability. 

Commenting on the results, Neil Record, Chairman of Record plc, said:  

“The economic backdrop has continued to be one of general risk aversion in financial 
markets.  Against this backdrop it is not surprising that the business has continued to see 
hedging represent an increasing share of assets and income. 

“Whilst overall AuME at the year end were broadly unchanged, the mix of business has seen 
Passive Hedging increase by 20% when compared to a decrease of 47% in Currency for 
Return.  Our largest fee earning product, Dynamic Hedging, had a mixed year with the loss of 
a large US client partially offset by the addition of a UK fund.  Overall AuME for this product 
declined by 17% during the period. 

“Management fee income fell to £20.4m and as a result the operating margin fell to 32%.  The 
balance sheet had £24.6m cash and no debt at the year end. 

“Looking to the current year, we believe we are well positioned to achieve success in hedging, 
particularly for Passive Hedging in Switzerland.  We are encouraged by the progress we have 
made in the US since we recruited a US sales executive and are hopeful that we will see 
further progress in the current financial year.  Over the medium term we believe that the suite 
of Currency for Return products we have developed will be attractive to clients once they 
have established three-year track records.  In the 2012/13 financial year our Emerging Market 
and Forward Rate Bias Index products should reach the three-year milestone.” 

Analyst briefing 

There will be a presentation for analysts at 9.30am on Tuesday 12 June 2012 at the offices of 
JPMorgan Cazenove Limited at 10 Aldermanbury London EC2V 7RF.  A copy of the 
presentation will be made available on the Group's website at www.recordcm.com. 

For further information, please contact: 

Record plc:    +44 1753 852222 

Neil Record - Chairman 

James Wood-Collins - Chief Executive Officer 

Paul Sheriff - Chief Financial Officer / Chief Operating Officer 

MHP Communications     +44 20 3128 8100  

Nick Denton, John Olsen, Vicky Watkins 

                                                      

1 FRB =Forward Rate Bias is the observed tendency of higher interest rate currencies’ total return to outperform that 
of lower interest rate currencies. 

http://www.recordcm.com/
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 

 2012 2011 

 £’000 £’000 

Revenue 20,535 28,196 

Cost of sales (252) (102) 

Gross profit 20,283 28,094 

Administrative expenses (13,430) (15,740) 

Loss on financial instruments held as part of disposal group (299) (1) 

Operating profit 6,554 12,353 

Finance income 155 184 

Profit before tax 6,709 12,537 

Taxation (1,803) (3,603) 

Profit after tax 4,906 8,934 

Other comprehensive income - - 

Total comprehensive income for the year 4,906 8,934 

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:   

Non-controlling interests (7) 27 

Owners of the parent 4,913 8,907 

   

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity holders of the 
Company during the year (expressed in pence per share)   

Basic earnings per share 2.23p 4.03p 

Diluted earnings per share 2.23p 4.03p 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 

 2012 2011 

 £’000 £’000 

Non-current assets   

Property, plant and equipment 183 227 

Intangible assets 1,140 1,085 

Deferred tax assets - 70 

 1,323 1,382 

Current assets   

Trade and other receivables 5,070 6,904 

Derivative financial assets 33 - 

Cash and cash equivalents 24,572 24,728 

 29,675 31,632 

Current assets held for sale (disposal group) 1,075 3,022 

Total current assets 30,750 34,654 

Total assets 32,073 36,036 

Current liabilities   

Trade and other payables (2,494) (4,089) 

Corporation tax liabilities (900) (1,837) 

Derivative financial liabilities (48) (12) 

 (3,442) (5,938) 

Deferred tax liabilities (15) - 

Total net assets 28,616 30,098 

Equity   

Issued share capital 55 55 

Share premium account 1,809 1,809 

Capital redemption reserve 20 20 

Retained earnings 24,469 27,262 

Equity attributable to owners of the parent 26,353 29,146 

Non-controlling interest 2,263 952 

Total equity 28,616 30,098 
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT 
‘Overall, hedging represented 80% of our revenue for the year ended 31 
March 2012 compared with only 18% of revenue for the year ended 31 
March 2009.  This shows the considerable change in business mix and 
challenges the business has faced over the last three years.’ 

The year to 31 March 2012 has seen both revenues and profitability continue to decline as a 
result of the changing mix in our business to lower revenue and lower margin hedging 
products.  Whilst overall Assets under Management Equivalents ‘AuME’ have remained 
broadly similar to the prior period, the proportion of lower revenue Passive Hedging has 
increased, offset by falling assets in Dynamic Hedging and Currency for Return products. 

The Group is focussed on marketing and selling our expertise to potential clients and 
progress has been made over the period.  The recruitment of a US sales executive has 
resulted in a substantial increase in marketing activity with potential US clients.  We believe 
that the benefits of this local approach to selling in the US will become evident in the coming 
years.  Similarly in Europe, we have a sales executive in Continental Europe, including 
Switzerland, where we have had recent success in Passive Hedging. 

Over the last couple of years we have expanded the product range considerably and are now 
able to offer a suite of hedging and return seeking products to both existing and prospective 
clients.  The product offering is now well developed and whilst we continue to look for new 
and innovative products we anticipate a period of slower product introduction. 

Market conditions have remained unstable with the continuation of monetary intervention 
across the developed world, particularly in the US, the Eurozone and the UK.  This has led to 
a difficult environment, particularly for our forward rate bias strategies.  Market conditions 
have also been less favourable for Dynamic Hedging where certain major currency pairs have 
traded within relatively narrow ranges during the period as opposed to following strong 
trending behaviour. 

Overall, hedging represented 80% of our revenue for the year ended 31 March 2012 
compared with only 18% of revenue for the year ended 31 March 2009.  This shows the 
considerable change in business mix and the challenges the business has faced over the last 
three years. 

Financial performance 

The financial performance of the Group saw management fees decrease to £20.4m for the 
year to 31 March 2012, a decline of 27% compared to the year ended 31 March 2011. 

The operating margin, at 32%, was also less than that achieved in the year to 31 March 2011 
(44%).  As a result of declining profitability, measures are being taken to reduce costs.  
However, the extent of cost savings that can be implemented is constrained by our need to 
maintain an appropriate level of support for investment processes and client services.  The 
largest reduction in cost is due to the variable nature of remuneration, whereby the Group 
Profit Share ‘GPS’ which is set at an average of 30% of pre-GPS operating profit has reduced 
in line with profit. 

Overall, profit before tax was £6.7m and earnings per share was 2.23p per share.  The 
proposed final dividend is 0.75p per share, which together with the interim dividend, means 
the total dividend for the year is 1.50p per share.  When compared with earning per share of 
2.23p, the dividend was 1.5 times covered during the period. 

For the current financial year, the Board’s current intention, subject to business conditions, is 
to retain the overall dividend payable at 1.50p per share.  In setting the dividend, the Board 
will be mindful of achieving a level which it expects to be covered by earnings.  The Board will 
defer the interim dividend that would ordinarily have been paid in December 2012 until the 
final dividend for the year ending 31 March 2013. 
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Shareholder funds were reduced at the end of the current financial year, principally due to the 
prior year’s final dividend being paid in the period.  Overall shareholder funds reduced by 9% 
to £26.4m.  Cash balances were £24.6m, broadly unchanged in the period.  The Group has a 
regulatory capital surplus and has cash reserves equivalent to approximately eighteen 
months operating costs and no debt. 

Aligned incentives 

The Group is a people led business and in order to generate revenues from clients and 
ultimately profits for shareholders, the Group needs to be able to attract and retain talented 
individuals.  Such individuals are typically highly mobile and are highly sought after in a 
competitive employment market for their skills.  To incentivise and motivate these individuals, 
Record operates a profit share scheme.  Since the IPO in 2007, the Board has maintained a 
scheme which distributes 30% of operating profits over the medium term between all 
employees of the Group.  This profit share is similar to that operated by many investment 
management businesses, and we believe that it is essential if we are to build a sustainable 
business for the benefit of shareholders.  This aligns the interests of shareholders and 
employees given that the profit share moves in line with returns to shareholders and further 
that senior executives are required to take a proportion of this remuneration in the form of 
shares.  In line with the overall Group’s performance, the size of the profit share pool has 
fallen by 75% from that of three years ago, compared to a fall of 74% in earnings per share 
and a fall of 84% in the share price (based on 31 March 2012 closing price) over the same 
period. 

Whilst we see no reason to fundamentally change the scheme, we will be making a small 
number of changes to the scheme for the 2012/13 financial year in order to make the scheme 
more transparent for employees.  The intention is to maintain the overall scheme at 30% of 
operating profits over the medium term distributed between all employees of the Group.  The 
scheme is being separated into two pools, being the Group Profit Share Scheme and a 
Matching Scheme.  The intention is to operate the Group Profit Share Scheme and Matching 
Scheme at 27% and 3% respectively of pre-GPS operating profits.  The Matching Scheme will 
operate in a similar manner to the current scheme, albeit with the funding being explicitly 
separate from the ‘core’ Profit Share Scheme. 

In order to recruit at an appropriate level in the US, it was necessary to offer a sales-based 
incentive to our new US sales executive.  The Board considers that it is appropriate to treat 
this cost as a cost of sale for the current financial year.  When combined with the Group Profit 
Share Scheme and Matching Scheme, it is expected that all payments will remain below 35% 
of operating profit in most reasonable scenarios. 

In response to the continuing decline in financial performance of the Group, each member of 
the Board took a voluntary ten per cent reduction in base salary from 1 December 2011.  
From a personal perspective, since the appointment of James Wood-Collins as CEO in 
October 2010, I have no longer participated in the Group Profit Share scheme.  I have also 
offered to take a more substantial cut in salary from July 2012 to a level commensurate with a 
non-Executive Chairman.  However, I will continue to devote substantially all my time to 
Record and its clients through this difficult phase for the business. 

Group strategy and outlook 

The broadening of the product suite is now well advanced and the priority is to reverse the 
decline in revenue and profitability through the acquisition of new clients.  Passive and 
Dynamic Hedging present the most likely short-term opportunities in the US, UK and 
Switzerland.  The sales and marketing effort is being targeted at those opportunities where 
there is a higher likelihood of success in the short term. 

For the Currency for Return products, we expect the most likely short-term success to be in 
the emerging market product as the product will complete a three-year live track record in the 
current financial year.  This is seen as a milestone in gaining acceptance for the product, 
particularly with investment consultants. 
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In the medium term, the success of one or more of the Currency for Return products is likely 
to drive growth. 

Neil Record 

Chairman 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT 
‘Having delivered broader product diversification over the last couple of 
years, the Group is now focussed on the marketing and sales effort to 
acquire new clients alongside servicing our existing clients.’ 

As highlighted in the Chairman’s statement, overall AuME have remained broadly stable 
when compared to the prior year.  Passive Hedging AuME have continued to grow.  
Continued stress in the banking sector and increasing recognition of the benefits of an 
independent expert mean that our Passive Hedging expertise is being seen as valuable by 
clients.  Whilst both Dynamic Hedging and Currency for Return AuME have fallen, these are 
for distinct reasons: Dynamic Hedging reflects client-specific decisions, whereas Currency for 
Return has suffered a market-wide cyclical decline.  It is disappointing not to have made more 
progress with new Dynamic Hedging sales but it is anticipated that the benefit of continued 
marketing and communication to both consultants and potential clients will become evident in 
the future.  The market for Currency for Return products remains subdued in this ‘risk averse’ 
phase of the economic cycle. 

The Currency for Return offering has been enhanced through the addition of a multi-strategy 
approach that offers value and momentum strategies in addition to the established forward 
rate bias and emerging market strategies.  Whilst marketing and selling a return seeking 
strategy is difficult in a ‘risk averse’ period, for those clients seeking to make a return from 
currency the product offering is now a comprehensive and compelling proposition.  
Furthermore the multi-strategy approach can be used as a flexible ‘overlay’ to help clients 
achieve a variety of investment objectives. 

During the year we recruited a US sales executive which has resulted in a noticeable increase 
in the number of prospective meetings that have been held in the US and the level of client 
and consultant feedback on product development.  In the current financial year we will see 
how these initial client and consultant interactions progress and will be in a better position to 
judge the likely investor appetite and timing for our products in this market. 

The Group’s principal products have had another mixed year with Dynamic Hedging seeing a 
reduction, Passive Hedging seeing an increase and Currency for Return continuing the trend 
over recent years of seeing significant reductions as detailed below: 

Dynamic Hedging is our longest-standing product, with continuous client track records since 
1985.  AuME saw a decline, falling to $9.9bn at 31 March 2012 (2011: $11.9bn).  The change 
in AuME principally relates to the loss of the second largest US Dynamic Hedging mandate in 
the year partially offset by the addition of a UK local authority mandate.  Income from 
Dynamic Hedging accounted for 66% of the Group revenue for the year ended 31 March 
2012 (2011: 62%). 

Passive Hedging, at $18.9bn (2011: $15.7bn), accounts for 61% of AuME at 31 March 2012, 
and 15% of Group revenue in the year.  We believe that our product offering has a number of 
differentiating features and continue to see a renewed interest in the product, particularly in 
Switzerland, the UK and Continental Europe. 

Currency for Return comprises all the return seeking strategies, totalling $1.8bn at 31 March 
2012 (2011: $3.4bn).  The two largest components are the forward rate bias strategy ($1.0bn) 
and emerging market strategies ($0.8bn).  In early April 2012, the largest remaining investor 
in the Active FRB pooled fund (Cash Plus) redeemed its investment.  This led to the closure 
of the fund, with other investors either redeeming or switching into other pooled funds.  
Record continues to offer pooled funds in FRB Index, Emerging Market and Euro Stress 
strategies, as well as segregated Active FRB mandates that maintain this product’s live track 
record. 
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Investment performance 

The twelve months to 31 March 2012 have seen notably distinct regimes of market sentiment.  
The “risk on-risk off” phenomenon, in which assets historically regarded as diversified have 
shown much higher correlations, emerged during the financial crisis and has persisted 
through the year.  This phenomenon has seen assets perceived as offering expected long-
term positive returns in exchange for the assumption of risk by the holder (exemplified by 
equities) perform positively in “risk on” environments and underperform in “risk off” 
environments.  By contrast assets perceived as offering “safe haven” characteristics in 
turbulent environments (exemplified by certain Government bonds) perform positively in “risk 
off” environments and underperform in “risk on” environments.  Whilst to some extent certain 
assets have always exhibited this behaviour, what has been novel and unwelcome throughout 
this period is this behaviour becoming established as the norm for investment opportunities, 
rather than the exception, and the highly correlated performance seen across “risk on” or “risk 
off” assets respectively, regardless of their underlying nature.  It remains to be seen how 
permanent a feature of the investment landscape this phenomenon becomes. 

In broad terms, the first four months of the year (April through July) were favourable for risk 
assets; the next five (August through December) experienced higher levels of risk aversion 
and volatility in financial markets, and the last quarter (January through March) saw some 
return to risk appetite. 

These regimes of market sentiment affect our various products in different ways.  In general 
terms, hedging can be neither “risk on” nor “risk off”, as it is dependent on the investor’s base 
currency.  The US Dollar characteristically performs well as a “safe haven” in “risk off” 
environments (although this needn’t be the case when the US economy is itself the source of 
concern, as was the case in the summer of 2010).  Whilst this behaviour persists, hedging for 
US Dollar clients can be cash-flow positive in “risk-off” environments.  Sterling by contrast 
typically performs better in “risk on” environments – hence a geographically-diversified range 
of hedging business can provide some diversification of exposure to risk sentiment. 

Dynamic Hedging’s ability to outperform Passive Hedging is dependent on trending, rather 
than any measure of risk appetite.  Trending has been less prevalent throughout the year 
than has been the case historically, with certain major currency pairs trading within relatively 
narrow ranges. 

Our longer-established return seeking strategies, the forward rate bias and emerging market 
currency strategies, are founded in market risk premia, and as such perform more strongly in 
“risk on” environments.  By contrast, value and momentum strategies are founded in market 
inefficiencies which are more behavioural in nature.  As such they are less risk-sensitive, with 
value strategy returns relatively insensitive to risk sentiment, and momentum strategy returns 
potentially inversely correlated to risk sentiment.  It is precisely this diversification of response 
to risk sentiment that makes us enthusiastic about the multi-strategy approach. 

Finally, the Euro Stress Fund, launched in May 2011, is intended to have an inverse 
relationship with a specific risk factor, namely that of perceived stress in the Eurozone.  This 
is achieved through a tactical and non-systematic approach predominantly implemented 
through options and option-like positions established at relatively low cost in periods of low 
perceived stress, which then increase in value as perceived Eurozone stress rises.  The 
optionality in the fund’s holdings offers investors the prospects of an outsized pay-off, with 
constrained downside. 

The year ended 31 March 2012 has therefore seen performance in line with expectations in 
Dynamic Hedging.  Net performance over the year in Currency for Return strategies has 
depended on the extent to which the balance between “risk on” and “risk off” environments 
has affected each strategy, such that forward rate bias strategies have generally performed 
positively, and the systematic emerging market strategy delivered aggregate negative 
performance over the year. 
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Product development 

The last three years has seen the product offering expand from three strategies at the IPO to 
the current range of eight strategies, as well as the ability to construct multi-strategy products.  
This diversification, particularly in the return seeking strategies, now gives the Group a 
comprehensive range of currency strategies that can be offered to both existing and new 
clients.  Whilst research continues into areas where we believe there are further opportunities, 
it is anticipated that the product offering will expand at a slower rate in the coming years. 

In hedging, work continues on enhancements to the product offering in areas such as trading, 
counterparty management and changes to the hedging programs where appropriate.  The 
ability to tailor hedging mandates to a client’s specific requirements is seen as becoming 
increasingly important. 

The addition of both value and momentum to return seeking strategies gives the Group the 
opportunity to combine four currency return streams (carry, momentum, value and emerging 
markets) in different weightings for individual clients based on their risk and return objectives.  
Over time a range of multi-strategy products could be envisaged that combine these return 
streams in differing weightings that appeal to particular market segments.  Applying the multi-
strategy approach as an ‘overlay’ can help clients achieve a variety of investment objectives 
such as duration matching and risk budget optimisation. 

In the coming financial year, the emerging market product will pass a ‘live’ three-year track 
record.  This is a key step to gaining momentum in the institutional market place where the 
running of ‘live’ money is beneficial.  Whilst sales success will depend on investment 
performance since inception, it is hoped that progress can be made in this strategy in the 
coming years. 

We continue to assess the investment strategy of the Euro Stress Fund in light of the steps 
taken by Eurozone authorities, such as the European Central Bank’s Long Term Refinancing 
Operations, to introduce more market stability. 

Marketing and Distribution 

The Group’s sales and marketing resources are concentrated on the UK, Europe (in particular 
Switzerland) and North America.  Whilst this does not preclude other geographical 
opportunities, the Group is less pro-active in these markets. 

In the UK, the marketing and distribution is to both pension schemes and also to investment 
consultants.  The UK market has been characterised by almost no activity in Currency for 
Return and a small number of Request for Proposals (RFPs) for Dynamic Hedging during the 
year.  The Group was successful in securing one mandate for Dynamic Hedging in the middle 
of 2011 in a more competitive environment.  It is too early to ascertain the likely level of 
demand in the coming financial year and any future mandates will attract an increasing level 
of competition.  Demand for Currency for Return is likely to remain subdued in the current 
financial year but there are likely to be further opportunities in Passive Hedging. 

In Europe, in particular Switzerland, we have seen an increasing level of interest for Passive 
Hedging.  The Group has a strong position in this marketplace, having secured a number of 
large schemes in recent years.  From the start of the current financial year, the Group has a 
sales executive in Switzerland who had previously been working for the Group in the UK.  The 
Group believes there are further opportunities in this market and that we are well positioned to 
capitalise on these opportunities. 

In the US, the local sales executive has been very active in talking to pension plans and 
investment consultants that were previously less well-known or unknown to the Group.  Whilst 
US pension plans have previously chosen mainly not to hedge their currency exposure nor to 
seek a return from currency, currency issues are becoming more important with an increasing 
level of international exposure aided by the well publicised issues with the Euro.  Against this 
backdrop, it is hoped that sales progress can be made in the coming years.  It remains to be 
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seen how quickly sales can be built in the US but the level of demand for the Group’s 
products should become clearer as the current financial year progresses. 

In Canada, the Group undertakes marketing to institutional investors and pension plans, 
largely through the UK-based team.  Opportunities over the medium term are expected in 
both Hedging and Currency for Return products. 

James Wood-Collins 

Chief Executive Officer 
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BUSINESS REVIEW 
The twelve months to 31 March 2012 saw AuME broadly unchanged with 
hedging representing 93% of AuME and 80% of revenue.  Currency for 
Return products continued to see a decline in AuME representing 6% of 
AuME and 19% of revenue.  Dynamic Hedging continued to perform in 
line with client expectations.  Investment performance for the Active 
Forward Rate Bias and Forward Rate Bias Index products was positive 
in the year. 

Introduction 

The Business Review is a review of the business by management.  Its purpose is to provide 
shareholders with a summary, setting out the business objectives of the Group, the Board’s 
strategy to achieve those objectives, the risks faced, the regulatory and operating 
environment and the key performance indicators (KPIs) used to measure performance. 

Overview  

The twelve months to 31 March 2012 saw increasing AuME for Passive Hedging and 
declining AuME for Dynamic Hedging and Currency for Return.  Overall, hedging represented 
80% of revenue with Dynamic Hedging representing 66% of revenue.  The Group saw 
broadly stable AuME with decreases in client numbers, revenue and operating profit.  The 
balance sheet of the Group remains strong with substantial cash and capital resources 
available to the Group. 

KPIs 

The Board and Executive Committee use a number of key performance indicators (KPIs) to 
monitor the performance of the Group.  A three-year history of these KPIs is shown below. 
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Table 1 - KPIs 

KPIs 2012 2011 2010 

AuME at 31 March – US Dollars $30.9bn $31.4bn $34.0bn 

AuME at 31 March – Sterling £19.3bn £19.6bn £22.4bn 

Average AuME – US Dollars $29.2bn $31.3bn $34.8bn 

Currency Alpha Composite3 1.68% (3.39%) (0.73%) 

Client numbers at 31 March  41 46 93 

Average management fee rates achieved 11.2 14.0 15.2 

Operating profit margin 32% 44% 49% 

Basic EPS 2.23 pence 4.03 pence 5.39 pence 

Summary of highlights 

 AuME were broadly stable at $30.9bn or £19.3bn at the year end. 

 Passive Hedging AuME grew by 20% offset by reductions in Currency for Return of 
47% and Dynamic Hedging of 17%. 

 Average AuME decreased by 7% to $29.2bn during the year. 

 Client numbers: this represents the number of separate legal entities that have 
invested in a Record fund or appointed Record directly as an investment manager.  
Each entity may have more than one mandate.  The number of clients at 31 March 
2012 was 41, a fall of 5 over the year. 

 The blended average management fee rate fell from 14.0bps to 11.2bps due to two 
factors: change in product mix due to both growth of the Passive Hedging product 
(which has a lower average management fee rate) and the further decline in Currency 
for Return, and a reduced average Dynamic Hedging management fee rate due to 
fee changes that took effect during the year. 

 A combination of reduced management fees, offset by reduced profit share cost 
resulted in an operating profit margin of 32% for the year to 31 March 2012. 

                                                      

3 Currency Alpha Composite – an investment return track record generated by the 
aggregation of all standard segregated track records for Record’s Active Forward Rate Bias 
Currency for Return product.  The Currency Alpha Composite is asset weighted, based on 
AuME for each account.  Currency Alpha Composite is shown as a KPI for completeness 
although given the size of the Currency for Return mandates it is no longer seen as a key KPI 
and will not be included in subsequent years. 
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 The excess return of our segregated Alpha Composite, expressed as a percentage of 
underlying assets on an ungeared basis, was 1.68%. 

 The decrease in operating profit margin is reflected in the fall in the Group’s earnings 
per share to 2.23p per share. 

Product review 

Investment performance 

Our hedging products are systematic in nature.  The effectiveness of each of the client 
mandates is assessed regularly and adjustments are made when necessary in order to 
respond to changing market conditions or to bring the risk profile of the hedging mandate in 
line with the client’s risk tolerance. The performance of our Dynamic Hedging product 
depends on how the foreign currencies change in value relative to the base currency of a 
client. 

During the last year, mandates for our US and UK-based Dynamic Hedging clients performed 
as expected in terms of allowing clients to benefit from periods of strengthening foreign 
currencies, whilst being protected against periods of weakening foreign currencies.  However, 
the rapid pace at which the market changed from one environment to the other meant that 
over the year risk management costs built up in excess of long-term expectations.  As a 
consequence, clients experienced negative overall returns from their hedging programmes, 
as the risk management costs more than offset the hedging profits. 

US investors saw gains from currency in the first quarter as the US Dollar weakened, leading 
to higher US Dollar valuations for foreign currency investments. Record’s Dynamic Hedging 
product performed well in this period, maintaining low hedge ratios and allowing the majority 
of foreign currency gains to translate into strong US Dollar performance. In the subsequent 
period however the US Dollar appreciated, taking an uneven path to finish the year stronger. 
This uneven path required larger and more frequent adjustments to hedge ratios, leading 
Record’s risk management process to generate costs which more than offset hedging gains 
from a strengthening US Dollar. 

UK investors saw a comparable return profile, as Sterling took a volatile path to strengthen 
modestly against foreign currencies. Risk management costs similarly offset hedging gains, 
adding to currency underperformance seen in Sterling terms as weakening foreign currencies 
led to less favourable Sterling valuations for international assets. 

Record had four ‘live’ Currency for Return products in the year. The Active Forward Rate Bias 
(FRB), Emerging Market and Euro Stress Fund products are active and return seeking in 
nature, though exploit different market phenomena. The fourth return seeking product, the 
Forward Rate Bias Index product (Record FTSE FRB10 Index Fund) is a passive return 
seeking strategy that tracks the FTSE Currency FRB10 index. 

For the Active FRB product, the core investment process – the Trend/Forward Rate Bias 
strategy – aims to buy selected developed market higher interest rate currencies and sell 
selected lower interest rate currencies and to manage these positions with a view to 
controlling downside risk.  Historically this investment approach has shown positive returns 
due to the existence of the Forward Rate Bias and trending movements in selected currency 
pairs, although in the period since the beginning of the credit crunch the returns from the 
Forward Rate Bias have been negative.  The year saw positive returns however, as relatively 
low interest rate currencies, particularly the Japanese Yen, weakened in the final quarter of 
the period. A complementary investment process – the Range Trading strategy – consistently 
added to returns as selected currency pairs mean reverted, generating outperformance. 

Similarly, the Forward Rate Bias Index product added value as high interest rate currencies 
appreciated. Record remains committed to our belief that over time currency and in particular 
the FRB can be a persistent and uncorrelated source of returns for investors, and that the 
FRB will continue to generate long-term returns. 
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Euro area concerns dominated investment sentiment over the period, and as fears 
surrounding repayment of Greek sovereign debt and possible contagion to other areas of the 
Eurozone periphery escalated, levels of global risk aversion rose. This risk aversion led to the 
broad underperformance of emerging market currencies in the middle of the year, and to 
negative returns in Record’s Emerging Market Currency Fund over the year. However, the 
easing of debt crisis concerns following the European Central Bank’s decision to support the 
banking sector via its long-term refinancing operations (LTRO) and the landmark restructuring 
of Greek debt, combined with rising commodity prices – supportive of ‘commodity currencies’ 
– and improving US economic data generated positive performance in the final quarter. 

Record believes that as a result of the convergence in the levels of economic output between 
emerging and developed markets, emerging market currencies appreciate over time.  This 
currency appreciation has historically been a significant contributor of returns to (developed 
market) holders of emerging market assets including equities and bonds.  We therefore 
regard emerging market currency strategies as an attractive route through which to implement 
emerging market local currency debt strategies, offering substantially the same elements of 
return, with significant implementation benefits including cost, flexibility, and security.  This 
convergence-driven return opportunity combined with the forward rate bias from selection 
based on interest rate differentials and discretionary risk management, is expected to result in 
long-term positive performance of the strategy. 

Record’s Euro Stress Fund aims to add value in the event of rising levels of financial stress 
within the Euro area. The product performed as expected over the period, responding to 
developments in the debt crisis, and ultimately underperforming over the partial year to 31 
March 2012 as banking sector and sovereign debt concerns eased. Underperformance 
resulted primarily from declining interest rates on German and Italian debt, and a decrease in 
the value of currency options as levels of implied volatility dropped towards the end of the 
year. 
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Table 2 - Annual returns of Record Umbrella Currency Funds; year to 31 March 2012 

Fund Name Gearing Annual Return % Volatility since 
inception % p.a.4 

Cash Plus 7 3.38% 19.60% 

FTSE FRB 10 Index5 1.8 3.32% 7.94% 

Emerging Market Currency6 1 (3.69%) 9.12% 

Euro Stress 1 (8.86%) n/a 

Index /composite returns  Annual Return % Volatility since 
inception % p.a. 

Alpha composite  1.68% 2.78% 

FTSE Currency FRB5 GBP Excess 
return 

 (3.18%) 5.83% 

FTSE Currency FRB10 GBP Excess 
return 

 1.72% 4.73%7 

Global Equities (S&P 500)8  6.23% 14.86%9 

Gearing 

The Currency for Return product group allows clients to pick the level of exposure they desire 
in the FX currency programmes.  The pooled funds have historically offered clients a range of 
gearing and target volatility levels with either Sterling or US Dollars as the base currency.  
The segregated mandates allow clients to individually pick the level of gearing. 

It should be emphasised that in this case ‘gearing’ refers to the multiple of the maximum size 
of the aggregate forward contracts in the currency programme, to the pooled fund’s net 

                                                      

4 No volatility data is provided for products with less than 12 months historic data. 

5 FTSE FRB10 Index Fund return data is since inception in December 2010. 

6 Emerging Market Currency Fund return data is since inception in December 2010. 

7 Inception date is 31 December 1987. 

8 For comparison only. 

9 Since December 1987. 
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assets or the segregated mandate size.  This is limited by the willingness of counterparty 
banks to take exposure to the pooled fund or segregated client.  Gearing in this context does 
not involve borrowing. 

AuME development 

The Group has seen broadly stable AuME of $30.9bn at the year end compared with $31.4bn 
at the end of the previous year. 

Table 3 - AuME development ($bn) 

Opening AuME 
at 1 April 2011 Net client flows Performance Equity FX effect 

Closing AuME 
at 31 March 

2012 

31.4 +0.2 - -0.8 +0.1 30.9 

AuME movements result from both factors within Record’s control and external factors.  
External factors include exchange rates and the underlying asset value (usually equities) on 
which hedging mandates are based.  External factors accounted for a decrease of $0.7bn in 
AuME during the year. 

The Group has seen net inflows of $0.2bn from clients.  Inflows from both new and existing 
clients totalled $8.6bn, and were offset by outflows of $8.4bn.  Other movements included: 

(i) a fall of $0.8bn related to movements in global stock and other markets as many 
mandate sizes are linked to such markets; 

(ii) an increase of $0.1bn due to changes in exchange rates over the period, which 
affects the conversion of non-US Dollar mandate sizes into US Dollar AuME.  
This does not have an equivalent impact on the Sterling value of fee income; and 

(iii) investment performance in the Group’s pooled funds, which is compounded on a 
geared basis into the AuME of those funds, had no net impact on AuME in the 
period. 

Of these movements, (i) and (ii) are outside the control of the Group.  In future periods, the 
Group will not separately report movements due to investment performance given the overall 
size of the pooled funds. 

When expressed in Sterling, AuME were broadly stable at £19.3bn (2011: £19.6bn).  The split 
of AuME at the year end by base currency was 28% in Sterling, 47% in Swiss Francs, 21% in 
US Dollars, 2% in Canadian Dollars and 2% in Euros. 

Dynamic Hedging mandates saw a decrease of 17% to $9.9bn (2011: $11.9bn).  This is 
mainly the result of a large US client terminating their mandate in November 2011 offset by 
the addition of a UK client in mid 2011. 

Passive Hedging AuME increased by $3.2bn, a 20% increase in the year.  This increase was 
principally due to the combination of two factors: net inflows of $2.9bn, and a growth of 
$0.2bn in value of the underlying assets, typically international equities, that the hedging 
programme is established to hedge against.  A number of mandates are linked to overall 
programmes under which an additional Currency for Return or Dynamic Hedging mandate 
incorporates an element of Passive Hedging. 

Record’s Currency for Return products are offered on either a segregated mandate basis or 
through pooled funds, where clients subscribe for units in funds for which Record is the 
distributor and investment manager.  Segregated Currency for Return AuME fell to $1.4bn 
(2011: $2.2bn) due principally to the net outflows which totalled $0.7bn.  Included in the 
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segregated Currency for Return mandates are a small number of mandates for emerging 
market currencies totalling $0.8bn (2011: $1.1bn).  Record’s pooled funds experienced 
significant outflows with AuME falling to $0.4bn (2011: $1.2bn).  In April 2012 the largest 
investor in the remaining Active Forward Rate Bias pooled fund redeemed their investment 
and as a result the fund has been closed down.  In subsequent periods Currency for Return 
will be reported as one category. 

Product mix 

The Group’s product mix has continued to change over the period due to the AuME 
movements described above.  Hedging AuME have grown to 93% of AuME (2011: 88%), as a 
result of the growth of the Passive Hedging product, which accounts for 61% of AuME (2011: 
50%).  Together Currency for Return and Dynamic Hedging represent 38% of AuME (2011: 
49%) being higher margin products compared to Passive Hedging.  Dynamic Hedging 
mandates made up 32% of AuME (2011: 38%).  Currency for Return pooled funds made up 
1% of AuME (2011: 4%) and Currency for Return segregated funds 5% of AuME (2011: 7%).  
As a result of the decline in the size of the pooled funds, the Group will in future periods report 
on Currency for Return as an overall category and not separately report on the size of the 
pooled funds. 

At 31 March 2012 Record had 41 clients.  The Group has gained a small number of new 
clients in the year but overall experienced a net loss of 5 clients. 
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Table 4 - AuME composition by product (US Dollars) 

 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 

 US $bn % US $bn % 

Currency for Return - segregated  1.4 5% 2.2 7% 

Currency for Return - pooled  0.4 1% 1.2 4% 

Sub - Total Currency for Return 1.8 6% 3.4 11% 

Dynamic Hedging  9.9 32% 11.9 38% 

Passive Hedging 18.9 61% 15.7 50% 

Cash  0.3 1% 0.4 1% 

Total  30.9 100% 31.4 100% 

Table 5 - AuME composition by product (Sterling) 

 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 

 £bn % £bn % 

Currency for Return - segregated  0.9 5% 1.4 7% 

Currency for Return - pooled  0.2 1% 0.8 4% 

Sub - Total Currency for Return 1.1 6% 2.2 11% 

Dynamic Hedging  6.2 32% 7.4 38% 

Passive Hedging 11.8 61% 9.8 50% 

Cash  0.2 1% 0.2 1% 

Total  19.3 100% 19.6 100% 
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Table 6 - AuME composition by product and base currency 

 Currency for Return 
Segregated 

Currency for Return Pooled Dynamic Hedging Passive Hedging 

Base Currency 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 

Sterling - GBP 0.3bn GBP 0.2bn GBP 0.8bn GBP 1.7bn GBP 1.2bn GBP 3.4bn GBP 3.6bn

US Dollar USD 0.7bn USD 1.0bn - - USD 5.9bn USD 8.9bn - -

Swiss Franc CHF 0.5bn CHF 0.5bn - - CHF 1.2bn CHF 1.0bn CHF 11.6bn CHF 7.9bn

Euro - - - - - - EUR 0.6bn EUR 1.0bn

Canadian Dollar CAD 0.2bn CAD 0.2bn - - - - - -

 

Total AuME (US Dollars) USD 1.4bn USD 2.2bn USD 0.4bn USD 1.2bn USD 9.9bn USD 11.9bn USD 18.9bn USD 15.7bn
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Table 7 - AuME by Client type 

 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 

 US $bn % US $bn % 

Government & Public funds 20.8 67% 18.7 59% 

Corporate Pension funds 6.4 21% 8.4 27% 

Foundations & Investment funds 3.7 12% 4.3 14% 

 Total  30.9 100% 31.4 100% 

Table 8 - AuME by client location 

 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 

 US $bn %  US $bn 

UK 8.7 28% 9.7 31% 

Europe (excluding UK) 16.5 54% 13.0 41% 

North America 5.7 18% 8.7 28% 

 Total  30.9 100% 31.4 100% 

Strategy 

The strategy of the Group remains largely unchanged even in the current period of strain in 
financial markets: 

 To focus on delivering sales from the expanded product range; 

 To deliver diversification benefits from the expanded product offering; 

 To increase focus on the US and Switzerland through dedicated sales resource; 

 To exploit opportunities for hedging (Dynamic and Passive) products in the current 
market environment; 

 To continue to research and enhance our existing products within currency 
management, including multi-strategy products; 

 To promote sustainable currency strategies and develop a manager-independent 
asset class – currency ‘beta’; 
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 To maintain and grow Currency for Return, including emerging market currencies; 
and 

 To continue investment in people and infrastructure. 

Market development 

Currency solutions 

Currency solutions potentially encompass a wide range of activities.  This ranges from clients 
seeking to be educated about currency exposure and solutions through to bespoke and 
tailored solutions for clients.  We continue to engage with existing and prospective clients as a 
result of currency issues becoming more important, particularly in the US and Switzerland.  
The sales and marketing initiatives being undertaken by the US sales executive could lead to 
a number of potentially interesting opportunities for tailored client solutions to their specific 
currency objectives. 

Hedging opportunities 

The continuing volatility in exchange rates combined with a period of uncertainty for the Euro 
has caused investors to think about their strategy for managing exchange rate exposure, 
particularly in the US and Switzerland.  In the US, exposure to international assets continues 
to increase combined with nervousness over the plight of the Euro.  In Switzerland we have 
seen a renewed interest in Passive Hedging partially due to the interventions that have taken 
place in the foreign exchange markets.  Hedging now represents 93% of AuME and 80% of 
revenue. 

Passive Hedging 

We have seen heightened interest in our Passive Hedging product since 2010 and this has 
resulted in AuME for this product growing every year since 2009.  Clients have been attracted 
to Record by our expertise in delivering tailored hedging programmes, because we offer 
independent trading relationships and by our ability to manage bank counterparty exposure 
on behalf of clients. 

Dynamic Hedging 

Record’s Dynamic Hedging programme is an attractive alternative to Passive Hedging that 
seeks to protect clients when a client’s base currency is strong and limit the costs when the 
base currency is weak.  However, the product requires a level of confidence in Record 
together with a high level of understanding from the investment consultants, investment 
managers and trustees of a scheme.  The level of interest in this product, particularly in the 
UK, has risen during the past twelve months and there have been a number of formal 
tendering processes that Record has participated in, securing one new mandate during the 
year.  This increased level of interest has attracted a higher level of competition from existing 
and new entrants to the UK market.  Whilst it is clearly beneficial to have a higher take up of 
the product, the increasing level of competition presents additional challenges.  In the US we 
continue to market and promote the benefits of Dynamic Hedging as part of the US sales 
initiative. 

The product itself has continued to perform in line with expectations during this period, 
although with higher risk management costs for clients in both the UK and US, as described 
in the Investment Performance section of the Business Review. 

Currency for Return opportunities 

Following a period of product development, Record currently has a suite of six Currency for 
Return strategies being Active FRB, FRB Index, Emerging Markets, Value, Momentum and 
Euro Stress.  Additionally, Record is able to offer combinations of these strategies under a 
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multi-strategy approach that seeks to vary the allocation to these strategies either on a fixed 
basis or according to market conditions.  Record is able to offer many of these products in 
either a segregated or pooled fund offering. 

At 31 March 2012, Currency for Return AuME principally comprised $1.0bn for the Active 
FRB and $0.8bn for Emerging Markets.  The FRB Index and Euro Stress funds comprised 
mainly Record seed capital. 

Active FRB 

Record’s established Active FRB strategy saw a year of positive performance.  However, the 
longer term period of negative performance has seen continued outflows over the period and 
this has culminated in the closure of the last remaining pooled fund running this strategy in 
April 2012. 

The product comprised $0.6bn in segregated accounts and $0.4bn in pooled funds at 31 
March 2012.  Following the closure of the last remaining pooled fund running this strategy, the 
product continues to be offered to segregated accounts.  The strategy experienced positive 
investment performance during the year that contrasted with the negative performance over 
the preceding three years. 

FRB Index 

One of Record’s medium to long-term aims is to develop currency as an asset class in its own 
right.  The ‘asset class project’, which started in 2009, saw the launch of a second currency 
index, the FTSE Currency FRB10 Index, in December 2010.  Record launched a pooled fund, 
the Record Currency FTSE FRB10 Index Fund, to track this FTSE index and invested £1m in 
December 2010.  This product also had positive performance during the year and cumulative 
performance since December 2010 of 7.32%.  It is envisaged that a return to more normal 
monetary policy conditions and a sustained period of positive performance are the precursors 
to material client demand for this product. 

Emerging Market 

Record recognises that emerging market currencies offer investors an opportunity to either 
seek to make a return from emerging market currencies or seek to separate the underlying 
overseas domestic asset performance (typically equities or bonds) from the currency effect.  
Record currently has a small number of segregated accounts, totalling $0.8bn of AuME for 
which an emerging market currency option portfolio and an emerging market currency 
strategy are implemented.  Additionally, a pooled fund product was launched in December 
2010 and seeded with a £1m investment from Record. 

The Emerging Market currency strategy is approaching three years since ‘live’ money was 
invested and had positive performance of 5.25% from inception to 31 March 2012.  Being 
able to demonstrate a three-year track record is seen as important by investment consultants 
in gaining acceptance of a new product. 

Euro Stress 

During the year, Record launched a Jersey-based fund that is positioned to generate a return 
in periods of strain on the European currency union.  Record seeded the fund with a £1m 
investment.  In a year in which the Euro has experienced periods of stress and periods of 
relative calm, the performance of the fund has tracked these sentiments.  Whilst the fund 
initially did well towards the end of 2011, this performance reversed in the first quarter of 
2012.  This fund is more discretionary in style, and its investment strategy will be kept under 
review in light of the steps taken by Eurozone authorities to introduce more market stability. 

Currency Momentum 

Momentum in currency is the tendency of the spot rate to appreciate after a prior 
appreciation, and to depreciate after a prior depreciation.  This market inefficiency has 
persisted across different currencies and it is present in other asset classes, such as equities.  
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Currency is commonly thought of as trending and a momentum strategy would seek to make 
a return from this phenomenon. 

Currency Value 

Research suggests that purchasing power parity (PPP) valuation models have been relatively 
good predictors of the long-term direction of spot movements.  For example, if a currency 
deviates too much from its equilibrium value (as indicated by PPP), then this deviation will be 
corrected.  The more significant the deviation, the more pressure on the exchange rate to 
revert to fair value and, consequently, the more rapid the reversion.  Currency value 
strategies exploit this insight, buying currencies that are undervalued relative to PPP and 
selling currencies that appear overvalued 

Product development 

Record has now expanded the product offering since IPO from three strategies to eight 
strategies, including four of the popular systematic Currency for Return strategies in FX, 
namely: “carry”; “value”; “momentum”; and “emerging markets”.  Having completed this 
product diversification the focus has shifted to refining the current products and offering multi-
strategy products. 

People management 

Record’s success depends on its ability to attract, retain and motivate highly talented staff. 

Recruitment 

The recruitment process is carefully structured to ensure that the right people are recruited 
into the Group.  This continues with a comprehensive induction programme for all new joiners 
to allow them to adapt to the specialist environment within Record. 

The Group has continued to recruit very selectively throughout the year in order to maintain a 
flexible, scalable platform for future growth.  The number of employees in the Group declined 
during the year as a result of allowing natural attrition to reduce headcount in certain 
departments.  Headcount at 31 March 2012 was 65 (2011: 70). 

Staff retention and motivation 

An effective performance review and objective setting process, personal development 
planning including the development of career paths, together with our open and involving 
office culture, are all key priorities in the development and retention of our staff.  In addition, 
the Group Profit Share Scheme promotes the acquisition of equity in the Company by staff, 
improving both motivation and retention. 

Board and management succession 

The Board of Directors has remained unchanged through the year.   

Infrastructure development 

Record is in the final stages of implementing a new middle and back office system.  The 
system has been thoroughly tested and has been run in parallel with the existing 
infrastructure since the start of 2012.  It is envisaged that the system will go live in the coming 
months and should deliver the benefits that were intended at the outset of the project for new 
instruments, deploying new products and portfolios, and delivering an improved level of client 
service. 
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Risk management 

The Board recognises that risk is inherent in all of its business dealings, and in the markets 
and instruments in which the Group operates.  It therefore places a high priority on ensuring 
that there is a strong risk management culture within the Group.  Effective risk management 
and strong internal controls are central to the Group’s business model and during the year the 
Group has made further progress in developing this framework. 

The Audit and Risk Committee was established to provide oversight and independent 
challenge in relation to internal control and risk management systems and procedures.  The 
Head of Compliance is responsible for ensuring compliance with appropriate legal and other 
regulatory standards, and for internal risk review of operational processes.  Additionally, 
Deloitte LLP performed a number of pieces of assurance work in respect of Record’s internal 
controls during the year. 

The Board has established a Risk Management Committee which is chaired by the Chief 
Financial Officer/Chief Operating Officer and has the Head of Operations, the Head of 
Trading, the Head of Reporting Services, the Head of Portfolio Management, the Head of 
Portfolio Implementation and the Head of Compliance as members.  The Committee reviews 
existing and new risks, and the nature of any operational incidents with the objective of 
ensuring that adequate systems and controls are in place to minimise and preferably 
eliminate such incidents and their impact on both the Group and its clients. 

The Group appointed Grant Thornton UK LLP as the reporting accountant for its Audit and 
Assurance (AAF 01/06 and SAS 70) reports.  There are two types of assurance engagements 
associated with the AAF framework, specifically ‘reasonable’ assurance engagements and 
‘limited’ assurance engagements.  The Group undertakes the higher standard of ‘reasonable’ 
assurance engagements. 

The principal risks faced by the Group fall into a number of distinct categories and the means 
used to mitigate them are both diverse and relevant to the nature of the risk concerned.  The 
principal risks and the means used to mitigate them are set out below:
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Risk type/owner Description of risk Mitigation 

These include: These include: 

The Board’s lengthy investment management experience. Any impairment to Record’s standing in the currency management markets 
with investors and investment consultants may result in the loss of AuME 
and/or fee income. 

Record’s risk appetite does not extend to taking either regulatory or 
reputational risks within the decision making process.  Sufficient allocation of 
resources is provided to enhance prevention of any systemic failures of day 
to day product implementation that could affect the firm’s reputation. 

The Group’s investment process is steered by an Investment Committee of 
five, and for all products except the Euro Stress Fund is managed on a day to 
day basis by a systematic process which is not reliant on any individual 
employee.  The Euro Stress Fund is managed by a group of investment 
executives. 

All clients have two points of contact to ensure continuity in the client 
relationship if any one person left. 

Loss of key personnel; could impact on the management of the Group and/or 
lead to a loss of AuME. 

The Group considers that its remuneration policy and in particular the 
operation of the Group Profit Share Scheme promotes key personnel 
retention and effective risk management. 

Strategic and business risks 

The risk that the medium and long-term 
profitability of the Group could be 
adversely impacted by the failure to 
identify and implement the correct 
strategy. 

Delegated to: 

Record plc Board; and Executive 
Committee 

 

Concentration risk on single product type; Record’s products are all currency 
management based hence it would be adversely affected by a move away 
from currency, in particular Dynamic Hedging, by its core client base. 

Diversification of investment capabilities across risk-reducing and risk-taking 
products to reduce single event/product exposure. 
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Risk type/owner Description of risk Mitigation 

Account concentration; Record has a relatively small number of high value 
clients.  Its largest client generated 29% of revenue in the year ended 31 
March 2012.  The largest five clients generated 60% of revenue and the 
largest ten clients generated 81% of revenue in the year ended 31 March 
2012. 

Record’s commitment to client services excellence, the transparency of the 
investment process and the regular reporting and face to face contact with 
clients is integral to retention. 

Reliance on investment consultants; if a consultant no longer believes that 
Currency for Return or Dynamic Hedging is suitable for clients and/or a 
consultant no longer believes that Record is a recommended investment 
manager, then this could result in a loss of AuME. 

The Group devotes considerable senior management time and effort to its 
relationships with the investment consultancy firms to ensure that 
developments within the Group and its investment research and processes 
are understood by these firms. 

Changes in the regulatory environment or tax regime making investment in 
currency less attractive to investors. 

Diversification of investment capabilities across risk-reducing and risk-taking 
products to reduce single event/product exposure. 

Diversified product range underpinned by a number of different strategies that 
may not all be impacted by the intervention.  Depending on the nature of the 
intervention, certain product strategies may perform well. 

Market dislocation risk 

Delegated to: 

Executive Committee 

Intervention by government, government agency or regulatory body such as 
exchange controls, financial transaction tax, etc that renders some or all of the 
Group’s products ineffective. 

Experienced management team that are able to respond in a timely manner 
to adapt the business. 
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Risk type/owner Description of risk Mitigation 

These include: These include: 

Experienced Investment Committee meets frequently ensuring consistent 
core investment processes are applied. 

Dedicated currency management research and investment focus. 

The Group is paid by its Currency for Return clients to generate positive 
investment performance over the medium and long term by taking investment 
risk on their behalf.  Any sustained period of poor investment performance 
reduces the value of AuME in the Group’s pooled funds and segregated 
mandates that could lead to mandate terminations by clients, to loss of 
confidence in the Group’s investment model by clients, potential clients and 
the investment consultants who advise them. 

  Remuneration policy links senior management’s remuneration to long-term 
performance of the Group. 

Experienced Investment Committee meets frequently ensuring consistent 
core investment processes are applied. 

Investment risks 

The risk that long-term investment 
outperformance is not delivered, 
damaging prospects for winning and 
retaining clients, and putting average 
management fee margins under 
pressure. 

Delegated to: 

Investment Committee 

 

The Group’s Dynamic Hedging products seek to vary the hedge ratio of a 
client’s portfolio such that a client benefits from the hedging programme in 
periods of base currency appreciation and limits the costs in periods of base 
currency weakness.  Prolonged periods of base currency weakness or of 
range-trading in currency pairs may lead clients to re-assess the benefits of 
the product. Dedicated currency management research and investment focus. 
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Risk type/owner Description of risk Mitigation 

These include: These include: 

The Group has developed comprehensive disaster recovery and business 
contingency plans.  These cover scenarios from server failure to destruction 
of the Group’s offices.  Alternative office facilities and equipment are available 
at a disaster recovery provider should the premises be compromised.  
Disaster recovery procedures are tested on a regular basis at the site of the 
disaster recovery provider. 

The Group is exposed to the risk of failure of its proprietary IT system (ROMP, 
or Record Overlay Management Programme) and/or other IT systems. 

  

Engagement letters or service level agreements are in place with all 
significant service providers. 

Record prepares an annual AAF 01/06 report and SAS 70 report.  The 
contents of these reports, which have been independently reviewed and 
tested by Grant Thornton UK LLP, provide assurances of the Group’s 
procedures and controls to mitigate operating risk. 

Record has an outsourced Internal Audit function that reports independently 
to the Audit and Risk Committee. 

Operational risks 

Risks in this category are broad in nature 
and inherent in all businesses. 

They include the risk that operational 
flaws result in business losses – through 
error or fraud, the inability to capitalise on 
market opportunities, or weaknesses in 
systems and controls. 

Delegated to: 

Risk Management Committee 

Execution and process management; dealing, portfolio, settlement and 
reporting errors.   

  

  

  

The Group’s investment processes for all products except the Euro Stress 
fund are at the day to day level systematic and non-discretionary in nature.  
ROMP prompts trades that are executed by a dedicated trading team without 
discretion.  ROMP therefore controls the trading to ensure that portfolios are 
within the structure dictated by the investment process.  A dedicated portfolio 
management team oversees the investment process and provides post-trade 
compliance assurances. 
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Risk type/owner Description of risk Mitigation 

Each department has established procedures manuals that are available to 
all members of staff.  The adherence to these procedures is checked through 
the compliance monitoring programme, AAF and SAS 70 reviews and the 
internal audit programme. 

Non-compliance, including monitoring of investment breaches.   Each department has established procedures manuals that are available to 
all members of staff.  The adherence to these procedures is checked through 
the compliance monitoring programme, AAF and SAS 70 reviews and the 
internal audit programme. 

Record’s investment process involves high daily trading turnover of client 
positions in both size and volume, therefore it can be said to be reliant on 
market liquidity.   

The Group trades on behalf of clients in currency and other products with a 
large panel of banking counterparties.  Currency is a particularly liquid market 
that has continued to provide sufficient daily liquidity. 

Record exposes clients to derivative transactions with large banks as the 
counterparty.  As an over the counter (OTC) product, these contracts 
inherently contain a degree of counterparty risk with the counterparty bank. 

On a daily basis Record monitors the credit ratings (and other indicators of 
creditworthiness) of the counterparties Record has dealings with.  Changes 
are noted against a comprehensive Credit Risk Policy that is overseen by an 
established Risk Management Committee that meets on a monthly basis.  
Reallocations of exposures to certain counterparties may follow the daily 
review in order to ensure a prudent spread of counterparty credit risk. 
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Risk type/owner Description of risk Mitigation 

These include: These include: 

More than 70% of Group revenues are denominated in a currency other than 
Sterling, the Group’s functional and reporting currency, yet the Group’s cost 
base is predominantly Sterling based.   

The Group hedges its non-Sterling income on a monthly basis from the date 
that income is accrued until the anticipated date of receipt by using forward 
fixed rate currency sales contracts. 

The Group invests a limited amount of its resources in its own funds (seed 
capital), exposing it to price risk, credit risk, and foreign exchange risk.   

Monthly reporting of all balance sheet exposures to the Executive Committee 
and Board. 

The Group has adopted a credit risk policy to manage its credit risks, under 
which it keeps its cash on deposit with at least two high street UK banks at 
any one time. 

Treasury risks 

The risks that management does not 
appropriately mitigate balance sheet risks 
or exposures potentially resulting in an 
adverse impact on the financial 
performance or position of the Group. 

Delegated to: 

Chief Financial Officer 

Liquidity management - the Group is exposed to credit risk and interest rate 
risk in respect of its cash balances.   

Monthly reporting of all balance sheet exposures to the Executive Committee 
and Board. 
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Financial review 

Total revenue decreased by 27% to £20.5m, principally due to the reduction in management 
fees.  This is greater than the marginal reduction in average AuME during the year of 7% due 
to the business mix changing to include a higher percentage of Passive Hedging that attracts 
lower fees.  Total expenditure decreased by 13% to £13.7m through a reduction in the Group 
Profit Share cost.  Profit before tax decreased by 46% to £6.7m. 

Table 9 - Profit and loss (£m) – Year ended 31 March 

 

Fees 

In the year ended 31 March 2012, the loss of a significant Dynamic Hedging client, continued 
decline of our Active FRB Currency for Return product and renegotiation of fee rates with our 
largest client, led to total fee income decreasing to £20.4m. 

 2012 2011 

Management fees 20.4 28.1 

Performance fees - - 

Other revenue 0.1 0.1 

Total revenue 20.5 28.2 

Cost of sales (0.2) (0.1) 

Gross profit 20.3 28.1 

Personnel (excluding Group Profit Share Scheme) (6.4) (6.1) 

Non-personnel cost (4.2) (4.3) 

Loss on financial instruments held as part of disposal group (0.3) - 

Total expenditure (excl. Group Profit Share Scheme) (10.9) (10.4) 

Group Profit Share Scheme (2.8) (5.3) 

Operating profit 6.6 12.4 

% 32% 44% 

Net interest received 0.1 0.1 

Profit before tax 6.7 12.5 

Tax (1.8) (3.6) 

Profit after tax 4.9 8.9 
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Table 10 - Average management fee rates by product – (bps) 

 2012 2011 

Currency for Return - segregated 26.1 28.3 

Currency for Return - pooled 18.4 23.4 

Currency for Return – combined average 23.8 26.1 

Dynamic Hedging  20.0 23.9 

Passive Hedging  3.1 2.9 

Weighted average 11.2 14.0 

Record charges fees to its clients based upon the AuME of the product provided.  Both 
Passive and Dynamic Hedging typically have fixed fee arrangements.  Record has historically 
offered all Currency for Return clients the choice of paying an asset-based management fee 
only or the alternative of management fee plus performance fee.  Higher performance fee 
rates usually accompany lower management fee rates and vice versa.  Following the closure 
of the remaining Active FRB pooled fund in April 2012, there are no remaining Currency for 
Return clients with a performance fee component.  Record charges similar fees for both 
segregated and pooled Currency for Return mandates. 

Management fees and performance fees are normally invoiced on a quarterly basis, although 
Record invoices management fees for some of its larger clients on a monthly basis. 

Table 11 - Total fee analysis (£m) 

 2012 2011 

Management 20.4 28.1 

Performance - - 

Other 0.1 0.1 

Total  20.5 28.2 

Management fees 

Management fee income during the year was £20.4m (2011: £28.1m).  The table below 
shows growth in Passive Hedging, with management fee income attributable to Passive 
Hedging of £3.0m, up 11% in the period.  Management fees for Dynamic Hedging of £13.5m, 
were down 23% and in Currency for Return management fees were £3.9m, down 51%. 
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Table 12 - Management fees by product (£m) 

 2012 2011 

Currency for Return - segregated  3.0 4.8 

Currency for Return - pooled  0.9 3.1 

Sub-Total Currency for Return 3.9 7.9 

Dynamic Hedging  13.5 17.5 

Passive Hedging 3.0 2.7 

Total  20.4 28.1 

Performance fees 

There were no performance fees earned in the year (2011: £nil).  Performance fee structures 
have historically been earned in Currency for Return mandates.  Following closure of the 
Cash Plus Fund in April 2012, there are no active mandates for Currency for Return that 
incorporate a performance fee component.  There is one Dynamic Hedging mandate that has 
the potential to earn performance fees. 

Other income 

Other income includes gains / losses on hedging revenues denominated in currencies other 
than Sterling, and foreign exchange gains, in addition to revenues from activities other than 
currency management. 

Group Profit Share Scheme 

The Group operates a Group Profit Share Scheme such that a long-term average of 30% of 
operating profit before Group Profit Share (GPS) is made available to be awarded to 
employees.  The Remuneration Committee has recommended that for the year ended 31 
March 2012, the Group Profit Share Scheme is 30% of pre-GPS operating profit.  For the year 
ended 31 March 2012, this represents £2.8m, a reduction of £2.5m from the previous financial 
year.  This represents a year on year decrease of 47% compared with a 27% year on year 
decrease in revenue. 

Directors and senior management in Record plc are required to take a proportion of this 
remuneration in the form of shares subject to lock-up arrangements. 

Under the scheme rules, the intention is to purchase these shares in the market following the 
announcement of interim and full year financial results. 

Operating margin 

The operating profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 of £6.6m was 47% lower than the 
operating profit for the previous financial year (2011: £12.4m).  The Group achieved an 
operating profit margin of 32% for the year ended 31 March 2012 (44% in 2011). 
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During the year ended 31 March 2012, total operating expenditure of the Group decreased by 
13% to £13.7m.  This results from a £2.5m reduction in the Group Profit Share Scheme and a 
£0.1m decrease in non-personnel costs offset by a £0.3m increase in personnel costs, and a 
£0.3m loss on financial instruments held as a disposal group.  Group Profit Share (GPS) 
decreased in line with the reduction in Operating profit (pre-GPS). 

The Group has taken steps to control its cost base as revenues have continued to decline in 
the second half of the year.  The Group has seen the number of employees reduce by 7% in 
the year and the benefit of this reduction together with reductions in Board members’ salaries 
of 10% from 1 December 2011 will be evident in the current financial year.  Steps have also 
been taken to reduce non-personnel costs, although this is likely to be offset by higher system 
costs following the implementation of the new middle and back office system. 

Cash flow 

The Group’s ability to generate cash has remained good, with a year end cash position of 
£24.6m (31 March 2011: £24.7m).  The year on year change is principally due to the dividend 
payment in respect of the prior year offset by the consolidation of the cash positions within the 
seed capital funds that had previously been categorised as assets held for sale (+£4.0m).  
Cash generated from operating activities before tax was £5.0m, with £2.7m paid in taxation 
and £7.4m paid in dividends. 

Dividends 

Shareholders received an interim dividend of 0.75p per share paid on 20 December 2011.  
The Board recommends paying a final dividend of 0.75p per share, equivalent to £1.6m.  This 
would take the overall dividend to 1.50p per share (dividend paid in respect of year ended 31 
March 2011: 4.59p per share).  This represents a 67% payment of profits after tax for the year 
ended 31 March 2012. 

Subject to shareholder approval, the dividend will be paid on 1 August 2012 to shareholders 
on the register on 22 June 2012, the ex-dividend date being 20 June 2012.  The dividend 
cover in the year was 1.5 (2011: 0.9). 

Capital management  

The Board’s policy is to retain capital (being equivalent to shareholders’ funds) within the 
business sufficient to meet continuing obligations, sustain future growth and to provide a 
buffer against adverse market conditions.  To this end the Group has developed a financial 
model to assist it in forecasting future capital requirements over a four-year time horizon 
under various scenarios.  Shareholders’ funds were £26.4m at 31 March 2012 (2011: 
£29.1m).  The Group has no debt. 

Regulatory environment and regulatory capital 

Record Currency Management Limited (RCML) is authorised and regulated in the UK by the 
Financial Services Authority.  RCML is registered as an Investment Adviser with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission in the United States.  RCML is an Exempt International 
Adviser with the Ontario Securities Commission in the State of Ontario, Canada and is 
registered as exempt with the Australian Securities & Investment Commission.  RCML is 
approved by the Irish Financial Services Regulator to act as promoter and investment 
manager to Irish authorised collective investment schemes.  The Group has a Jersey-based 
management company, Record Currency Management (Jersey) Limited, authorised by the 
Jersey Financial Services Commission to manage Expert Funds. 

The Group has one UK regulated entity, RCML, on behalf of which half-yearly capital 
adequacy returns are filed.  RCML held surplus capital resources relative to its requirements 
at all times during the period under review.  The Group is also subject to consolidated 
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regulatory capital requirements, whereby the Board is required to assess the degree of risk 
across the business, and hold sufficient capital within the Group against it.   

The Group has an active risk-based approach to monitoring and managing risks used for 
reviewing and amending its Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP).   

The Board is satisfied that the Group is adequately capitalised to continue its operations 
effectively given the considerable balance sheet resources maintained by the Group.  At 31 
March 2012, Record had Tier 1 capital of £26.3m.  Further information regarding the Group’s 
capital adequacy status can be found in the Group’s Pillar 3 disclosure, which is available on 
our website at www.recordcm.com. 

Outlook – The new financial year 

The Group is focussed on its sales and marketing initiatives which seek to reverse the decline 
in AuME over recent years.  Sales activity is focussed on pursuing those prospects that 
present an immediate opportunity for one of Record’s products and in the short term the most 
attractive opportunities are likely to be in hedging, particularly Passive Hedging in Switzerland 
and Dynamic Hedging in the US.  The UK market is likely to continue to see a small number 
of opportunities in the short term. 

Currency for Return is likely to see a period of subdued demand, particularly for the FRB 
strategies where a return to more normal monetary policy conditions and a sustained period 
of positive returns is seen as a precursor to clients re-considering this investment strategy.   

The live track record of the Emerging Market strategy reaches its three-year anniversary in 
November 2012.  Providing the performance track record remains attractive it is hoped that 
progress can be made with this strategy over the coming years. 

The Group continues to market the newer products, being Euro Stress, Momentum, Value 
and Multi-Strategy both directly to clients and indirectly via investment consultants. 

Cautionary statement 

This announcement contains certain forward-looking statements with respect to the financial 
condition, results, operations and business of Record.  These statements involve risk and 
uncertainty because they relate to events and depend upon circumstances that will occur in 
the future.  There are a number of factors that could cause actual results or developments to 
differ materially from those expressed or implied in this announcement.  Nothing in this 
announcement should be construed as a profit forecast.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 

  2012 2011 

 Note £’000 £’000 

Revenue 3 20,535 28,196 

Cost of sales  (252) (102) 

Gross profit  20,283 28,094 

Administrative expenses  (13,430) (15,740) 

Loss on financial instruments held as part of disposal group 18 (299) (1) 

Operating profit 4 6,554 12,353 

Finance income 6 155 184 

Profit before tax  6,709 12,537 

Taxation 7 (1,803) (3,603) 

Profit after tax  4,906 8,934 

Other comprehensive income  - - 

Total comprehensive income for the year  4,906 8,934 

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:    

Non-controlling interests  (7) 27 

Owners of the parent  4,913 8,907 

    

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity holders of the 
Company during the year (expressed in pence per share)    

Basic earnings per share 8 2.23p 4.03p 

Diluted earnings per share 8 2.23p 4.03p 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 

 Note 2012 2011 

  £’000 £’000 

Non-current assets    

Property, plant and equipment 11 183 227 

Intangible assets 12 1,140 1,085 

Deferred tax assets 14 - 70 

  1,323 1,382 

Current assets    

Trade and other receivables 15 5,070 6,904 

Derivative financial assets 16 33 - 

Cash and cash equivalents 17 24,572 24,728 

  29,675 31,632 

Current assets held for sale (disposal group) 18 1,075 3,022 

Total current assets  30,750 34,654 

Total assets  32,073 36,036 

Current liabilities    

Trade and other payables 19 (2,494) (4,089) 

Corporation tax liabilities 19 (900) (1,837) 

Derivative financial liabilities 19 (48) (12) 

  (3,442) (5,938) 

Deferred tax liabilities 14 (15) - 

Total net assets  28,616 30,098 

Equity    

Issued share capital 20 55 55 

Share premium account  1,809 1,809 

Capital redemption reserve 22 20 20 

Retained earnings  24,469 27,262 

Equity attributable to owners of the parent  26,353 29,146 

Non-controlling interest 23 2,263 952 

Total equity  28,616 30,098 
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 

 Note 2012 2011 

  £’000 £’000 

Non-current assets    

Investments 13 2,156 30 

  2,156 30 

Current assets    

Trade and other receivables 15 1,192 - 

Cash and cash equivalents 17 16 50 

  1,208 50 

Current assets held for sale (disposal group) 18 911 2,070 

Total current assets  2,119 2,120 

Total assets  4,275 2,150 

Current liabilities    

Trade and other payables 19 (948) (10) 

Corporation tax liabilities 19 - - 

  (948) (10) 

Total net assets  3,327 2,140 

Equity    

Issued share capital 20 55 55 

Share premium account  1,809 1,809 

Capital redemption reserve 22 20 20 

Retained earnings  1,443 256 

Total equity  3,327 2,140 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 

 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

 

 
Called up 

share 
capital 

Share 
premium 
account 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 
Retained 
earnings 

Non-
controlling 

interest 

Total 
shareholders' 

equity 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

As at 1 April 2011 55 1,809 20 27,262 952 30,098 

Dividends paid - - - (7,371) - (7,371) 

Own shares held by EBT - - - (534) - (534) 

Issue of units in funds to non-
controlling interests - - - - 1,318 1,318 

Share-based payments - - - 199 - 199 

Transactions with owners - - - (7,706) 1,318 (6,388) 
Profit and total comprehensive 
income for the year - - - 4,913 (7) 4,906 

As at 31 March 2012 55 1,809 20 24,469 2,263 28,616 

 
Called up 

share 
capital 

Share 
premium 
account 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 
Retained 
earnings 

Non-
controlling 

interest 

Total 
shareholders' 

equity 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

As at 1 April 2010 55 1,809 20 23,816 - 25,700 

Dividends paid - - - (5,723) - (5,723) 

Issue of units in funds to non-
controlling interests - - - - 925 925 

Share-based payments - - - 262 - 262 

Transactions with owners - - - (5,461) 925 (4,536) 
Profit and total comprehensive 
income for the year - - - 8,907 27 8,934 

As at 31 March 2011 55 1,809 20 27,262 952 30,098 
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 

 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

 

 
Called up 

share 
capital 

Share 
premium 
account 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 

Retained 
earnings 

Total shareholders’ 
equity 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

As at 1 April 2011 55 1,809 20 256 2,140 

Dividends paid - - - (7,371) (7,371) 

Employee share options    34 34 

Transactions with owners - - - (7,337) (7,337) 
Profit and total comprehensive 
income for the year - - - 8,524 8,524 

As at 31 March 2012 55 1,809 20 1,443 3,327 

 
Called up 

share 
capital 

Share 
premium 
account 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 
Retained 
earnings 

Total shareholders’ 
equity 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

As at 1 April 2010 55 1,809 20 199 2,083 

Dividends paid - - - (5,723) (5,723) 

Transactions with owners - - - (5,723) (5,723) 
Profit and total comprehensive 
income for the year - - - 5,780 5,780 

As at 31 March 2011 55 1,809 20 256 2,140 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 

 

 Note 2012 2011 

  £’000 £’000 

Profit after tax  4,906 8,934 

Adjustments for:    

Corporation tax  1,803  3,603 

Finance income  (155) (184) 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  96 191 

Amortisation of intangible assets  10 - 

Share-based payments expense  199 262 

  6,859 12,806 

Changes in working capital    

Decrease in receivables  1,831 1,418 

(Decrease) / Increase in payables  (1,594) 214 

Increase in other financial assets  (2,082) (1,985) 

Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities  35 (136) 

CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   5,049 12,317 

Corporation taxes paid  (2,656) (4,076) 

NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  2,393 8,241 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (52) (85) 

Purchase of intangible assets  (65) (679) 

Interest received  158 188 

NET CASH INFLOW / (OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  41 (576) 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

Cash inflow from issue of units in funds  1,318 925 

Purchase of treasury shares  (534) - 

Dividends paid to equity shareholders  (7,371) (5,723) 

CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (6,587) (4,798) 
NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE 
YEAR (prior to increase in cash due to accounting treatment of assets 
previously presented as disposal group) 

 (4,153) 2,867 

Increase in cash due to accounting treatment of assets previously presented as 
disposal group  17 3,997 - 

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE 
YEAR   (156) 2,867 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  24,728 21,861 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR  24,572 24,728 
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Closing cash and cash equivalents consists of:   

Cash 4,669 772 

Cash equivalents 19,903 23,956 

Cash and cash equivalents 24,572 24,728 
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 

 

Closing cash and cash equivalents consists of:   

Cash 16  50 

 

 2012 2011 

 £’000 £’000 

Loss after tax (86) (22) 

Adjustments for:   

Corporation tax - - 

Finance income (5) (4) 

Share-based payments expense 34 - 

 (57) (26) 

Changes in working capital   

Increase in other financial assets (967) (1,032) 

Increase in receivables (1,192) - 

Increase / (Decrease) in payables 938 (37) 

CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  (1,278) (1,095) 

Corporation taxes paid - (15) 

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,278) (1,110) 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   

Dividends received 8,610 5,802 

Interest received 5 4 

NET CASH INFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 8,615 5,806 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   

Dividends paid to equity shareholders (7,371) (5,723) 

CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (7,371) (5,723) 

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE YEAR (34) (1,027) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 50 1,077 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 16 50 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 

1. Accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements are set out below.  These policies have been consistently applied to all the 
periods presented unless otherwise stated. 

(a) Accounting convention 

Basis of preparation 

The Group and Company have prepared their financial statements under International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.  IFRSs comprise 
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as 
adopted in the European Union as at 31 March 2012.  The financial statements have been 
prepared on a historical cost basis, modified to include fair valuation of derivative financial 
instruments. 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the recognition and measurement 
principles with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income 
and expenses.  The bases for management judgements, estimates and assumptions are 
discussed further in note 2. 

Impact of new accounting standards 

A number of amendments to existing standards and interpretations have been issued, some 
of which were mandatory for periods beginning 1 April 2011, with the remaining becoming 
effective in future periods. The new standards and amendments to existing standards 
effective for the year to 31 March 2012 that have had an impact, and have been adopted by 
Record plc, related only to disclosure enhancements arising from the 2010 Annual 
Improvements. 

New standards and interpretations 

Other new or revised standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective include those 
listed below, but none of them are expected to have a significant impact of the financial 
statements of Record plc: 

 IFRS 9 – ‘Financial Instruments’ 

 IFRS 7 – ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ - Amendments enhancing disclosures 
about transfers of financial assets 

 IAS 12 – ‘Income Taxes’ – Limited scope amendment (recovery of underlying assets) 

 IFRS 10 – ‘Consolidated financial statements’ 

 IFRS 11 – ‘Joint Arrangements’ 

 IFRS 12 – ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ 

 IFRS 13 – ‘Fair value measurement’ 

 IAS 27 – ‘Separate Financial Statements’ 
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 IAS 28 – ‘Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates’ 

 IAS 1 – ‘Presentation of financial statements’ 

(b) Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial information contained within the financial statements incorporates 
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) 
drawn up to 31 March 2012.  Control is achieved where the Company has the power to 
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its 
activities.  Where the Group controls an entity, but does not own all the share capital of that 
entity, the interest of the other shareholders’ non-controlling interests is stated within equity at 
the non-controlling interests’ proportion of the fair value of the recognised assets and 
liabilities. 

An Employee Benefit Trust has been established for the purposes of satisfying certain share-
based awards.  The Group has ‘de facto’ control over this special purpose entity.  This trust is 
fully consolidated within the accounts. 

The Group has investments in a number of funds where it is currently in a position to be able 
to control those funds. These funds are held by Record plc and represent seed capital 
investments by the Group. The funds are consolidated either on a line by line basis, or if they 
meet the definition of a current asset held for sale (disposal group), they are classified and 
accounted for on that basis. 

The accounts of subsidiary undertakings, which are prepared using uniform accounting 
policies, are coterminous with those of the Company apart from those of the seeded funds 
which have accounting reference dates of 30 September.  The consolidated accounts 
incorporate the financial performance of the seeded funds in the year ended 31 March 2012 
and the financial position of the seeded funds as at 31 March 2012. 

The Company is taking advantage of the exemption under the Companies Act 2006 s408(1) 
not to present its individual statement of comprehensive income and related notes that form 
part of the financial statements.  The Group total comprehensive income for the year includes 
a profit of £8,523,904 attributable to the Company (2011: £5,780,963). 

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income, expenses and dividends are eliminated on 
consolidation. 

(c) Segment reporting 

The Group provides its Directors with revenue information disaggregated by product, whilst 
operating costs, assets and liabilities are presented on an aggregated basis.  This reflects the 
unified basis on which the products are marketed, delivered and supported, and on this basis, 
the Directors consider that the Group has only one segment.  The Group reports its revenues 
by product and by two fee structures being 'management fees' and 'performance fees'.  
Revenue analysis is presented in note 3. 

(d) Foreign currencies 

The financial statements are presented in Sterling (£), which is also the functional currency of 
the parent company.  Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency 
of the parent company using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions 
(spot exchange rate).  Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of 
such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items at year end exchange 
rates are recognised in profit or loss. 
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In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward 
contracts which are accounted for as financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss (see note 1(q) Financial instruments).  The Group does not apply hedge accounting. 

(e) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised in profit or loss when the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably; it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the entity; the stage of completion 
can be measured reliably; and the costs incurred and costs to complete the transaction can 
be measured reliably also. 

Management fees are accrued on a daily basis based upon the Assets under Management 
Equivalent (AuME).  The Group is entitled to earn performance fees from a number of clients 
where the performance of the clients’ assets exceeds defined benchmarks by an agreed level 
of outperformance over a set time period.  Performance fees are recognised when the fee 
amount can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the fee will be received. 

(f) Retirement benefits 

The Group operates defined contribution pension plans for the benefit of certain employees.  
The Group makes contributions to independently administered plans, such contributions 
being recognised as an expense when they fall due.  The Group has no legal or constructive 
obligation to make any further payments to the plans other than the contributions due. 

(g) Share-based payments 

The Group issues share awards to employees.  Deferred share awards issued under the 
Group Bonus Scheme are classified as share-based payments with cash alternatives under 
IFRS 2.  The fair value of the debt component of the amounts payable to the employee is 
calculated as the cash amount offered to the employee at grant date and the fair value of the 
equity component of the amounts payable to the employee is calculated as the market value 
of the share award at grant date less the cash forfeited in order to receive the share award.  
The debt component is charged to profit or loss over the period in which the award is earned 
and remeasured at fair value at each reporting date, the equity component is charged to profit 
or loss over the vesting period of the award. 

All other awards have been classified as equity-settled under IFRS 2.  The fair value of the 
amounts payable to employees under these awards is recognised as an expense over the 
vesting period of the award, with a corresponding increase in equity.  All such awards made 
by the Group involve the parent company granting rights to its equity instruments to 
employees of its subsidiary.  Consequently the subsidiary measures the services received 
from its employees in accordance with the above classification under IFRS2 and recognises a 
corresponding increase in equity as a contribution from the parent.  The parent has the 
obligation to settle the transaction with the subsidiary’s employees and therefore recognises 
an increase in its investment in the subsidiary and a corresponding increase in equity   

The fair value of options granted is measured at grant date using an appropriate valuation 
model.  All current awards have been valued using the Black-Scholes model, taking into 
account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted.  The fair value 
amounts for the options issued since listing on the London Stock Exchange were determined 
using quoted share prices.  Further details on the share-based compensation plans are 
included in note 21. 

(h) Leases 

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards are retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases.  Payments made under these operating leases are recognised 
in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.  Benefits received as an 
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incentive to sign a lease, whatever form they may take, are credited to profit or loss on a 
straight line basis over the lease term. 

(i) Dividend distribution 

Interim and special dividends are recognised when paid and final dividends when approved 
by shareholders. 

(j) Property, plant and equipment 

All property, plant and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided to write off the cost, less residual 
value, on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life. 

 Computer equipment - 2-5 years 

 Fixtures and fittings - 4 years 

 Leasehold improvements - period from acquisition to next rent review 

Residual values, remaining useful economic lives and depreciation methods are reviewed 
annually and adjusted if appropriate.  Gains or losses on disposal are included in profit or 
loss. 

(k) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are shown at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses.  Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of the intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite.  Amortisation is included 
within operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.  Intangible assets are 
amortised from the date they are available for use.  Useful lives are as follows: 

 Software - 5 years 

Amortisation periods and methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.   

(l) Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables are stated at their original invoice value, as the interest that 
would be recognised from discounting future cash receipts over the short credit period is not 
considered to be material.  Trade receivables are reduced by appropriate allowances for 
estimated irrecoverable amounts. 

(m) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, on demand and collateral deposits held 
with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a 
known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(n) Deferred taxation 

Deferred tax is the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities shown on the statement of financial position.  
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of recovery or 
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date. 
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A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.  The carrying amount of the 
deferred tax assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all 
or part of the asset to be recovered. 

A deferred tax liability is generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 

Deferred tax assets or liabilities arising on goodwill are not recognised but are however 
recognised on separately identifiable intangible assets.  Deferred tax arising on the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability, other than a business combination, that at the time of the 
transaction affects neither the accounting nor taxable profit or loss, is not recognised. 

(o) Assets classified as held for sale (disposal groups) 

When the Group intends to sell a disposal group, and if sale within twelve months is highly 
probable, the disposal group is classified as ‘held for sale' and presented separately in the 
statement of financial position. 

A disposal group classified as ‘held for sale' is measured at the lower of its carrying amount 
immediately prior to the classification as ‘held for sale' and its fair value less costs to sell.  
Gains and losses are recognised through profit or loss. 

As at 31 March 2012, the Group's held for sale assets are limited to seed capital in the Euro 
Stress Fund.  As at 31 March 2011 the Group's held for sale assets were comprised of seed 
capital in the FTSE FRB10 Index Fund and the Emerging Market Currency Fund. 

(p) Trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables are stated at their original invoice value, as the interest that would 
be recognised from discounting future cash payments over the short payment period is not 
considered to be material. 

(q) Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.  Financial assets are derecognised 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or when the 
financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred.  A financial liability is 
derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value plus transaction 
costs, except for financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or 
loss, which are measured initially at fair value.  Financial assets and liabilities are measured 
subsequently as described below. 

Financial assets 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following 
categories upon initial recognition: 

 Loans and receivables; and 

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 

The category determines subsequent measurement and whether any resulting income and 
expense is recognised in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income. 
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All financial assets except those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to review for 
impairment at least at each reporting date.  Financial assets are impaired when there is any 
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.  Different 
criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of financial assets.   

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market.  After initial recognition these are measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.  
Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.  The Group's cash and 
cash equivalents and trade and other receivables fall into this category of financial 
instruments. 

Individual receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other 
objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default.  Impairment of trade 
receivables is presented within 'other expenses'. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets that meet certain 
conditions and are designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.  All 
derivative financial instruments fall into this category.  Assets in this category are measured at 
fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.  The fair values of derivative 
financial instruments are determined by reference to active market transactions. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except 
for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss, that are 
carried at fair value with gains or losses recognised through profit or loss. 

Derivative financial liabilities 

Derivatives are initially recognised at cost on the date on which the contract is entered into 
unless fair value at acquisition is different to cost, in which case fair value is recognised.  
Subsequently they are measured at fair value with gains and losses recognised in profit or 
loss.  Transaction costs are immediately recognised in profit or loss. 

(r) Impairment of assets 

The Group typically assesses annually whether there is any indication that any of its assets 
have been impaired.  If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated 
and compared to its carrying value. 

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount.  Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

In the case of the Group’s current assets held for sale (disposal group), which are seed 
investments in funds, the Group assesses whether the assets have been impaired on a 
monthly basis by performing a mark to market exercise. 

(s) Taxation 

Current tax is the tax currently payable based on taxable profit for the year.  Current income 
tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities 
relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that are unpaid at the reporting date.  Current 
tax is payable on taxable profit, which differs from profit or loss in the financial statements.  
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Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

(t) Own shares 

The Record plc Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) was formed to hold shares acquired under the 
Record plc share-based compensation plans.  A total of 2,028,432 (2011: 304,964) ordinary 
shares were held in the EBT at the reporting date.  The holding of the EBT comprises own 
shares that have not vested unconditionally to employees of the Group.  Own shares are 
recorded at cost and are deducted from retained earnings.  The EBT is consolidated in the 
Group financial statements. 

Neither the purchase nor sale of own shares leads to a gain or loss being recognised in the 
Group statement of comprehensive income.  Further information regarding the Record plc 
share-based compensation plans and relevant transactions made during the year are 
included in note 21. 

(u) Group and Company reserves 

The share premium account records the difference between the nominal value of shares 
issued and the value of the consideration received.  The use of the share premium account is 
governed by the Companies Act 2006. 

Where shares have been redeemed or purchased wholly out of the Company’s profits, the 
Companies Act 2006 requires a transfer to the capital redemption reserve equal to the 
amount by which the Company’s issued share capital is diminished.  Furthermore the 
provisions of the Act relating to a reduction of the Company’s share capital apply as if the 
capital redemption reserve were paid up share capital of the Company. 

(v) Non-controlling interests 

Record plc has made investments in a number of funds where it is in a position to be able to 
control those funds by virtue of the size of its holding.  Non-controlling interests occur when 
Record plc is not the only investor in the fund.  The non-controlling interest is measured at the 
fair value of the third party investment in the fund. 

(w) Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably 
lead to an outflow of economic resources from the Group and amounts can be estimated 
reliably.  Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.  A present obligation arises 
from the presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has resulted from past events. 

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the 
risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation.  Provisions are discounted to 
their present values, where the time value of money is material.  Any reimbursement that the 
Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is 
recognised as a separate asset.  However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the 
related provision. 

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate.  In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of 
present obligations is considered improbable or remote, no liability is recognised. 

2. Critical accounting estimates and judgements  

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 
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form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other sources.  Actual results may differ from these estimates.  
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods.  Note 18 describes the assumptions made in 
classifying its seed investment in new funds as assets held for sale.  Note 21 covers the 
assumptions made in calculating the fair value of share options offered by the Group to its 
employees.  The Directors have judged that the Group does not bear substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of its leasehold premises and therefore accounts for the leases as 
operating leases as described in note 26. 

3. Revenue 

(a) Segmental analysis 

The Directors, who together are the entity's Chief Operating Decision Maker, consider that its 
services comprise one operating segment (being the provision of currency management 
services) and that it operates in a market that is not bound by geographical constraints.  The 
Directors receive revenue analysis disaggregated by product, whilst operating costs are 
presented on an aggregated basis because this reflects the unified basis in which the 
products are marketed, delivered and supported. 

(b) Product revenues 

The Group has split its currency management revenues by product and fee type.  The 
Currency for Return product is delivered through both segregated mandates and a pooled 
fund structure.  Revenues from the seeded fund products (Euro Stress Fund, Emerging 
Market Currency Fund and FTSE FRB10 Index Fund) are not material and have been 
included in the Currency for Return pooled funds revenues.  Other Group activities include 
consultancy. 

 

Fees  FY12 FY11 
 £’000 £’000 
Dynamic Hedging  

Management fees 13,536 17,539 
Performance fees - - 

Passive Hedging  
Management fees 2,989 2,718 

Currency for Return segregated funds  
Management fees 3,002 4,771 
Performance fees - - 

Currency for Return pooled funds  
Management fees 909 3,111 
Performance fees - - 

Total management fee and performance fee 
income 20,436 28,139 

Other Group activities 99 57 
Total  20,535 28,196 
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(c) Geographical analysis 

The geographical analysis of revenue is based on the destination i.e. the location of the client 
to whom the services are provided.  All turnover originated in the UK.  All assets of the Group 
are located in the UK. 

Other Group activities form less than 1% of the total Group income.  This is not considered 
significant and they are not analysed by geographical region. 

 

(d) Major clients 

During the year ended 31 March 2012, £6.0m (29%) of the Group's revenue was accounted 
for by a single client.  No other clients accounted for more than 10% of the Group's revenue 
during the year. 

4. Operating profit 

Operating profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting): 

 

Income by geographical region 
Fees FY12 FY11 
 £’000 £’000 
UK 5,627 8,440 
US 8,886 13,604 
Switzerland 5,288 5,343 
Other 635 752 
Total management fee and performance fee 
income 20,436 28,139 

Other Group activities 99 57 
Total 20,535 28,196 

 FY12 FY11
 £’000 £’000
Staff costs 9,247 11,437
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 96 191
Amortisation of intangibles 10 -
Auditor fees  

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor for the audit of the 
Company’s annual accounts 34 34

The audit of the Group’s subsidiaries, pursuant to 
legislation 38 35

Other services pursuant to legislation 48 40
Other services relating to taxation 6 12

Operating lease rentals: Land and buildings 214 202
Exchange gains on hedging activities (68) (263)
Other exchange losses 191 245
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5. Staff costs 

The average number of employees, including Directors, employed by the Group during the 
year was: 

 

The aggregate payroll costs of the above employees, including Directors, were as follows: 

 

 

6. Finance income 

 

7. Taxation – Group 

The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: 

 

 FY12 FY11
Client Team 10 11

Research 6 6

Portfolio Management 12 11

Trading 5 5

Operations 6 6

Reporting Services 6 7

Systems 4 6

Finance, Human Resources and Legal 7 7

Administration 1 2

Compliance 2 2

Corporate 9 9

Annual Average 68 72

 FY12 FY11
 £’000 £’000
Wages and salaries 6,499  7,947 

Social security costs 953 1,226 

Pension costs 508 470 

Equity-settled share-based payments 1,287 1,794 

Aggregate payroll costs 9,247 11,437 

 FY12 FY11
 £’000 £’000
Interest on short-term deposits 155 184
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At the year end the Group had deferred tax liabilities of £15,438 (2011: deferred tax assets of 
£69,615).  At the balance sheet date there were share options not exercised with an intrinsic 
value for tax purposes of £14,128 (2011: £70,904).  The Group will be entitled to a 
corporation tax deduction in respect of the difference between the exercise price and the 
strike price upon the vesting of these options. 

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK is 26% (2011: 28%).  A full corporation tax 
computation is prepared at the year end.  The actual charge as a percentage of the profit 
before tax may differ from the underlying tax rate.  Differences typically arise as a result of 
capital allowances differing from depreciation charged, and certain types of expenditure not 
being deductible for tax purposes, other differences may also arise. 

The tax charge for the year ended 31 March 2012 was £1,803,237 (2011: £3,603,466) which 
was 26.9% of profit before tax (2011: 28.8%).   

8. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year attributable 
to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 
during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as for the basic earnings per share with a further 
adjustment to the weighted average number of ordinary shares to reflect the effects of all 
potential dilution. 

There is no difference between the profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders of 
the parent used in the basic and diluted earnings per share calculations. 

 

 FY12 FY11
 £’000 £’000
Profit before taxation 6,709 12,537
Taxation at the standard rate of tax in the UK of 26% (2011: 28%) 1,744 3,510
Tax effects of:  
Other disallowable expenses and non-taxable income 23  18 
Capital allowances for the period (higher) / lower than depreciation (76) 9 
Lower tax rates on UK subsidiary undertakings 34 (8)
Adjustments recognised in current year in relation to the current tax 
of prior years (9) 2 

Other temporary differences 87 72
Total tax expense 1,803  3,603 

 FY12 FY11
Weighted average number of shares used in calculation of 
basic earnings per share 220,100,209  220,965,275 

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares – share options 240,779  306,347 
Weighted average number of shares used in calculation of 
diluted earnings per share 220,340,988 221,271,622

  
 pence pence
Basic earnings per share 2.23 4.03
Diluted earnings per share 2.23 4.03
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The potential dilutive shares relate to the share options granted in respect of the Group's 
Share Scheme.  There were share options and deferred share awards in place at the 
beginning of the period over 304,964 shares.  During the year options were exercised, or 
share awards vested, over 176,532 shares.  The Group granted a net 1,900,000 share 
options with a potentially dilutive effect during the year. 

9. Dividends 

The dividends paid by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2012 totalled £7,371,007 
(3.34p per share), of which £1,645,143 (0.75p per share) was the interim dividend paid in 
respect of the year ended 31 March 2012 and £5,725,864 (2.59p per share) was the final 
dividend paid in respect of the year ended 31 March 2011.  The dividends paid during the 
year ended 31 March 2011 totalled £5,722,996 (2.59p per share), of which £4,420,307 (2.00p 
per share) was the interim dividend paid in respect of the year ended 31 March 2011 and 
£1,302,689 (0.59p per share) was the final dividend paid in respect of the year ended 31 
March 2010. 

A final dividend proposed in respect of the year ended 31 March 2012 is 0.75p per share. 

10. Retirement benefit obligations 

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme.  The assets of the scheme are 
held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.  The pension 
cost charge represents contributions payable by the Group to the fund and amounted to 
£507,940 (2011: £470,667). 

11. Property, plant and equipment – Group 

The Group's property, plant and equipment comprise leasehold improvements, computer 
equipment, and fixtures and fittings.  The carrying amount can be analysed as follows: 

 

 

 

 Leasehold 
improvements

Computer 
equipment

Fixtures and 
fittings Total

2012 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Cost  
At 1 April 2011 534 887 279  1,700 
Additions - 51 1  52 
Disposals - (222) (11) (233)
At 31 March 2012 534 716 269  1,519 
Depreciation  
At 1 April 2011 534 676 263  1,473 
Charge for the year - 83 13  96 
Disposals - (222) (11) (233)
At 31 March 2012 534 537 265  1,336 
Net book amounts  
At 31 March 2012 - 179 4 183 

At 1 April 2011 - 211 16 227 
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The Company has no property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2012 (2011: nil). 

12. Intangible assets 

The Group's intangible assets comprise acquired software only.  The carrying amounts can 
be analysed as follows: 

 Software Total
2012 £’000 £’000
Cost  
At 1 April 2011 1,085 1,085
Additions 65 65
Disposals - -
At 31 March 2012 1,150 1,150
Amortisation  
At 1 April 2011 - -
Charge for the year 10 10
Disposals - -
At 31 March 2012 10 10
Net book amounts  
At 31 March 2012 1,140 1,140
At 1 April 2011 1,085 1,085

 

 

 Leasehold 
improvements

Computer 
equipment

Fixtures and 
fittings Total

2011 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Cost  
At 1 April 2010 529 682 278  1,489 
Additions 5 79 1  85 
Disposals - (3) - (3)
Transfers - 129 - 129 
At 31 March 2011 534 887 279  1,700 
Depreciation  
At 1 April 2010 430 623 231  1,284 
Charge for the year 104 55 32  191 
Disposals - (2) - (2)
At 31 March 2011 534 676 263  1,473 
Net book amounts  
At 31 March 2011 - 211 16 227 

At 1 April 2010 99 59 47  205 
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As at 31 March 2012 the Group was in the final stages of implementation of a new back office 
software project.  Amortisation of the capitalised development costs will commence from the 
date that the project is completed (expected in the current financial year).  The estimated 
useful economic life of the completed software is five years.  The annual contractual 
commitment for the maintenance and support of software is £120,000.  All amortisation 
charges are included within administrative expenses. 

13. Investments 

 

 Software Total
2011 £’000 £’000
Cost  
At 1 April 2010 535 535
Additions 679 679
Disposals - -
Transfers (129) (129)
At 31 March 2011 1,085 1,085
Amortisation  
At 1 April 2010 - -
Charge for the year - -
Disposals - -
At 31 March 2011 - -
Net book amounts  
At 31 March 2011 1,085 1,085
At 31 March 2010 535 535

Company 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
 £’000 £’000
Investment in subsidiaries (at cost)  

Record Currency Management Limited 10 10
Record Group Services Limited 10 10
Record Portfolio Management Limited 10 10
Record Currency Management (US) Inc - -
Record Currency Management (Jersey) Limited 25 -
Record Fund Management Limited - -
N P Record Trustees Limited - -

Total investment in subsidiaries (at cost) 55 30
Capitalised investment in respect of share-based payments   

Record Currency Management (US) Inc 24 -
Record Group Services Limited 10 -

Total capitalised investment in respect of share-based payments 34 -
Total investment in subsidiaries 89 30
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Particulars of subsidiary undertakings 

 

The Group’s interest in the equity capital of subsidiary undertakings is 100% of the ordinary 
share capital in all cases.  Record Currency Management (US) Inc is incorporated in the USA, 
Record Currency Management (Jersey) Limited is incorporated in Jersey, and all other 
subsidiaries are incorporated in the UK. 

Investment in funds 

In December 2010, the Company invested in the Record Currency FTSE FRB10 Index Fund 
and the Record Currency Emerging Market Currency Fund. These were both accounted for 
as a disposal group held for sale in accordance with its accounting policy defined in note 1(o).  
In both cases, the Group still retains control over each of the funds twelve months after the 
original investment.  Consequently both funds ceased to be classified as held for sale and are 
now consolidated in full, on a line by line basis, and shown presented in investments in the 
Company.  As at 31 March 2011, the carrying value of these funds was included in current 
assets held for sale (disposal group) see note 18. 

 

Investment in funds 31-Mar-12
 £’000
Record Currency FTSE FRB10 Index Fund 1,078
Record Currency Emerging Market Currency Fund 989
 2,067

 

14. Deferred taxation – Group 

 

Name Nature of Business 
Record Currency Management Limited Currency management services 
Record Group Services Limited Management services to other Group undertakings 
Record Portfolio Management Limited Dormant 
Record Currency Management (US) Inc US service company 
Record Currency Management (Jersey) Limited Management company for Jersey-based fund 
Record Fund Management Limited Dormant 
N P Record Trustees Limited Trust company 

 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 
 £’000 £’000 
Profit and loss account movement arising during the year (85) (73) 
Asset brought forward 70 143 
(Liability) / Asset carried forward (15) 70 
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The provision for deferred taxation consists of the tax effect of temporary differences in 
respect of: 

 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 
 £’000 £’000 
Deferred tax allowance on unvested share options 4 18 
Excess of taxation allowances over depreciation on fixed 
assets (19) 52 

 (15) 70 

 

At the year end the Group had deferred net tax liabilities of £15,438 (2011: deferred net tax 
assets of £69,615) including provision for share options not exercised with an intrinsic value 
for tax purposes of £14,128 (2011: £70,904).  On exercise the Group will be entitled to a 
corporation tax deduction in respect of the difference between the exercise price and the 
strike price.  There is no other unprovided deferred taxation. 

15. Trade and other receivables 

 Group Company 
 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Trade receivables 4,268 6,264 - - 
Amounts due from Group undertaking - - 1,188 -
Other receivables 216 4 - -
Prepayments 586 636 4 -
 5,070 6,904 1,192 -

 

All amounts are short-term.  The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and 
other receivables approximates to their fair value.  All of the Group's trade and other 
receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment; no such indicators were noted.  
The carrying amount of receivables whose terms have been renegotiated, that would 
otherwise be past due or impaired is £nil (2011: £nil). 

16. Derivative financial assets 

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to reduce the risk associated with sales 
denominated in foreign currencies.  At 31 March 2012 there were outstanding contracts with a 
principal value of £2,685,811 (2011: £4,361,326) for the sale of foreign currencies in the 
normal course of business.  The fair value of the contracts is calculated using the market 
forward contract rates prevailing at 31 March 2012.  Further detail including sensitivity 
analysis on the fair value of outstanding contracts is contained in note 24. 

 Group 
 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 
 £’000 £’000 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 33 - 
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As at 31 March 2012, the forward foreign exchange contracts used to hedge revenues 
denominated in foreign currencies were presented as derivative financial liabilities (see note 
19) 

The net gain on forward foreign exchange contracts held to hedge cash flow is as follows: 

 Group 
 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 
 £’000 £’000 
Net gain on fair value through profit or loss 68 263 

 

17. Cash and cash equivalents 

 

The Group holds short-term deposits that are made for varying periods, depending on the 
cash requirements of the Group.  These deposits earn interest at market short-term deposit 
rates.  The Group has unrestricted access to these deposits which meet the definition of a 
cash equivalent. 

Since 31 December 2011, the Group cash and cash equivalents balance has incorporated the 
cash held by the Record Currency FTSE FRB10 Index Fund and the Record Currency 
Emerging Market Currency Fund (refer to note 18 for explanation of accounting treatment).  
As at 31 March 2012, the cash held by these two funds totalled £4,241,817 (the increase in 
cash arising from consolidating these two funds on a line by line basis with effect from 31 
December 2011 was £3,996,678). 

18. Current assets held for sale (disposal group) 

From time to time, the Group injects capital into funds operated by the Group to trial new 
products (seed capital).  If the Group is able to exercise control over such a seeded fund by 
holding a majority interest (whether the majority interest is held by Record plc alone, or by 
combining the interests of Record plc and its Directors), then such funds are considered to be 
under control of the Group and as such the fund becomes a subsidiary of the Group in 
accordance with SIC-12 and IAS 27. 

The Group consolidates the assets of its subsidiaries on a line by line basis, but where the 
Group is actively seeking to reduce its holding in the fore-mentioned funds within twelve 
months through the sale of further units in these funds to external investors, and the 
subsequent redemption of Record’s own investment, the investments in the funds are 
classified as being a disposal group held for sale as it is considered highly probable that the 
funds will not remain under the control of the Group one year after the original investment was 
made. 

 Group Company 
 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Cash and cash equivalents – 
Sterling 24,459 24,691 16  50 

Cash and cash equivalents  
– other currencies 113 37 - -

 24,572 24,728 16  50 
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If the Group still retains control of the funds after this time, the Group considers whether an 
extension of the one year period is applicable.  If no extension to the period is applicable, then 
the funds will cease to be classified as held for sale and will be consolidated in full. 

In May 2011, the Group invested £1,000,000 in the Record Currency – Euro Stress Fund, the 
only other investor in the fund is Neil Record, a Director of Record plc.  At the year end the 
Group retained control over this fund and continues to actively market units in the fund to 
external investors and intends to redeem its own investment.  The investment in the fund is 
classified as being a disposal group held for sale. 

In December 2010, the Group invested £1,000,000 in the Record Currency FTSE FRB10 
Index Fund and a further £1,000,000 in the Record Currency Emerging Market Currency 
Fund, and these were also accounted for as a disposal group held for sale on the same basis.  
In both cases, the Group still retains control over each of the funds twelve months after the 
original investment.  Therefore, from 31 December 2011, both funds ceased to be classified 
as held for sale and are now consolidated in full, on a line by line basis. 

 

 

The underlying assets of the funds are cash deposits and forward exchange contracts with 
tenors of three months or less which are accounted for as derivatives measured at fair value 
through profit or loss under IAS 39. 

The net loss on financial instruments held as part of a disposal group is as follows: 

 Group Company 
 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Net loss on financial instruments 
held as part of disposal group 299 1 91 28 

 

The net loss on financial instruments held as part of disposal group suffered by the Group 
includes a loss of £7,406 attributable to non-controlling interests. 

 Group Company 
 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Seed capital classified as 
being  a disposal group held 
for sale 

1,075 3,022 911 2,070 
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19. Current liabilities 

Amounts falling due within one year 

 Group Company 
 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Trade payables 196 580 - -
Amounts owed to Group 
undertaking - - 948 10

Other payables 135 279 - -
Other tax and social security 319 364 - -
Accruals and deferred income 1,844 2,866 - -
 2,494 4,089 948 10

 

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to 
their fair value. 

Current tax liabilities 

 Group Company 
 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Corporation tax 900 1,837 - - 

 

Derivative financial liabilities 

Two of the funds seeded by Record (the Record Currency FTSE FRB10 Index Fund and the 
Record Currency Emerging Market Currency Fund), use forward exchange contracts in order 
to achieve a return.  The Record Currency – Euro Stress Fund uses a variety of instruments 
including forward exchange contracts in order to achieve a return.  The forward exchange 
contracts held by the Record Currency FTSE FRB10 Index Fund and the Record Currency 
Emerging Market Currency Fund are classified as financial assets held for trading.  At 31 
March 2012 there were outstanding contracts with a principal value of £9,112,251 (at 31 
March 2011 all outstanding contracts held by the Record Currency FTSE FRB10 Index Fund 
and the Record Currency Emerging Market Currency Fund were presented within Current 
assets held for sale).  The fair value of the contracts was calculated using the market forward 
contract rates prevailing at the period end date.  The instruments held by the Record 
Currency – Euro Stress Fund are presented within Current assets held for sale  (see note 18). 
Further detail including sensitivity analysis on the fair value of outstanding contracts is 
contained in note 24. 

 

 Group Company 
 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Forward foreign exchange 
contracts held for trading 48 - - - 
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The net gain on forward exchange contracts at fair value is included in other income.  The net 
gain on financial assets is as follows: 

 Group Company 
 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Net gain on forward 
exchange contracts at fair 
value through profit or loss 

197 2 - 2 

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to reduce the risk associated with sales 
denominated in foreign currencies. 

 

As at 31 March 2012, the forward foreign exchange contracts used to hedge revenues 
denominated in foreign currencies were presented as derivative financial assets (see note16). 

20. Called up share capital 

The share capital of Record plc consists only of fully paid ordinary shares with a par value of 
0.025p.  All shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital and 
represent one vote at the shareholders' meeting. 

 

 Group Company 
 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Forward foreign exchange 
contracts - 12 - - 

 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11 
 £’000 Number £’000 Number 
Authorised   
Ordinary shares of 0.025p each 100 400,000,000 100 400,000,000
Called up, allotted and fully paid   
Ordinary shares of 0.025p each 55 221,380,800 55 221,380,800
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Changes to the issued share capital 

 £’000 Number
  
Ordinary shares of 0.025p each  55 221,380,800
  
Adjustment for own shares held by EBT - (586,068)
  
As at 31 March 2010 55 220,794,732
  
Adjustment for own shares held by EBT - 281,104
  
As at 31 March 2011 55 221,075,836
  
Adjustment for own shares held by EBT - (1,723,468)
  
As at 31 March 2012 55 219,352,368

 

The Group has established an Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) to hold shares to be used to 
meet future liabilities relating to the Group’s share-based compensation plans.  Under IFRS 
the EBT is considered to be under de facto control of the Group, and has therefore been 
consolidated into the Group.  As at 31 March 2012, the EBT held 2,028,432 ordinary shares 
of 0.025p in Record plc (2011: 304,964). 

21. Share-based payments 

During the year ended 31 March 2012 the Group has managed the following share-based 
compensation plans: 

The Record plc Group Bonus Scheme 

The Record plc Group Bonus Scheme (GBS) was adopted by the company on 1 November 
2007.  On 30 July 2009 it was amended and became the Record plc Group Profit Share 
Scheme.  Under the terms of the scheme rules, certain employees of the company could elect 
to receive a proportion of their bonus in the form of a deferred share award.  The number of 
shares was calculated based on the residual bonus divided by the market value of the shares 
at grant date.  The shares were available to the employee after the vesting period for nil 
consideration upon exercise.  The Group simultaneously granted additional rights to acquire 
shares (‘bonus’ shares; equal to 20% of the shares elected for) to those same employees.  
Elected shares vested in two equal tranches on each of the first and second anniversary of 
the date of grant and bonus shares vested in full only after two years.  The vesting of the 
shares was subject to continued employment or having left as a good leaver.  The final 
vesting of shares under this scheme occurred in June 2011 and this scheme is now ceased. 

The Record plc Group Profit Share Scheme 

The Record plc Group Bonus Scheme (GBS) was amended with the approval of a general 
meeting of the Company's members on 30 July 2009 and became the Record plc Group 
Profit Share Scheme (PSS).  Under the original terms of the PSS rules, employees and 
Directors of the company could elect to receive a proportion of their profit share in the form of 
a share award, with the exception of certain employees and Directors deemed significant 
shareholders who had to receive their profit share in cash.  During the year, the scheme was 
modified such that all senior managers irrespective of their shareholding in the Company are 
now required to receive at least one third of their profit share in the form of shares.  Directors 
and senior employees receive one third of their profit share in cash, one third in shares 
('Earned Shares') and may elect to receive the final third as cash only or to allocate some, or 
all, of the amount for the purchase of Additional Shares.  Other employees receive two thirds 
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of their profit share in cash and may elect to receive the final third as cash only or to allocate 
some, or all, of the amount for the purchase of Additional Shares. 

If an individual elects to receive Additional Shares, the Group simultaneously awards a 
Matching Share value amount using a multiple decided by the Remuneration Committee.  The 
multiple for Directors and senior employees was 1.0 and either 0.5 or 0.2 for other employees 
depending on the level of seniority within that group.  The number of shares is determined by 
the post-tax cash attributed to Earned Shares plus Additional Shares plus Matching Shares 
divided by the aggregate market value achieved on the purchase of all such shares in the 
market.  All shares the subject of share awards are transferred immediately to a nominee.  
None of these shares are subject to any vesting or forfeiture provisions and the individual is 
entitled to full rights in respect of the shares purchased.   No such shares can be sold, 
transferred or otherwise disposed of without the consent of the Remuneration Committee 
except as follows: 

 Earned shares - one third on each anniversary of the Profit Share Payment date; and 

 Additional or Matching shares - the third anniversary of the Profit Share Payment date 
for Directors and senior employees and the second anniversary of the Profit Share 
Payment date for all other employees. 

The Record plc Share Scheme 

The Record plc Share Scheme was adopted by the company on 1 August 2008.  During the 
year ended 31 March 2009 two new senior employees were granted deferred share awards 
upon appointment.  The number of shares for each employee was calculated based on 
£200,000 divided by the market price of one Record plc ordinary share on the day of 
appointment (or on the first business day after a close period, if the appointment occurred 
within a close period).  The shares are available to the employee after the vesting period for 
nil consideration upon exercise.  The shares vest equally on the second, third and fourth 
anniversary of appointment.  The vesting of the shares is subject to continued employment (or 
at the Remuneration Committee’s discretion, having become a good leaver).  The rights to 
acquire the shares are issued under nil cost option agreements.  

During the year the Share Scheme was amended to incorporate both an Approved and an 
Unapproved Option Scheme.  The Approved scheme enables the Group to provide tax-
approved awards to employees of Record plc or its subsidiaries and each participant may be 
granted approved options over shares with a total market value of up to £30,000 on the date 
of grant.  Awards under both schemes are in the form of options with an exercise price equal 
to the market value of a share on the date of grant.   

The Group issued a total of 2,000,000 options during the year under the Share Scheme.  Of 
these, 1,400,000 were under the Unapproved Scheme and 600,000 were under the Approved 
Scheme.  A total of 100,000 of the Unapproved options issued lapsed prior to the year end.  
All options were granted at a strike price set at the share price prevailing at the time of grant.  
The options over shares under the Approved Scheme vest in full on the fourth anniversary of 
grant and are subject to a performance condition based on the total shareholder return value 
in comparison with a relevant peer group.  One quarter of the Unapproved options vest each 
year over the next four years providing the employee has remained in employment at each 
vesting date. 

Share-based payment transactions with cash alternatives 

Deferred share awards granted under the Record plc Group Bonus Scheme and the Record 
plc Group Profit Share Scheme are accounted for under IFRS 2 as share-based payment 
transactions with cash alternatives. 
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Equity-settled share-based payments 

Deferred share awards and options granted under the Record plc Share Scheme are 
accounted for under IFRS 2 as equity-settled share-based payment transactions.   

At 31 March 2012, the total number of ordinary shares of 0.025p outstanding under Record 
plc share compensation schemes was 2,028,432 (2011: 304,964).  These deferred share 
awards and options are over issued shares held in an Employee Benefit Trust.  Details of 
outstanding share options and deferred shares awarded to employees are set out below: 

Outstanding share options 

Date of 
grant 

At 01 
April  
2011 

Granted Lapsed Exercised 
At 31 

March 
2012 

Exercise / 
vesting 

date: From 

Exercise / 
vesting 

date: To 
Exercise 

price 

Record plc 
Share 
Scheme 

  
 

     

04/08/08 113,496  -   - (56,748) 56,748 04/08/2010 04/08/2012 £0.00 

01/09/08 143,368  -   - (71,684) 71,684 01/09/2010 01/09/2012 £0.00 

08/08/11 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 08/08/2012 08/08/2015 £0.318 

08/08/11 - 400,000 (100,000) - 300,000 08/08/2012 08/08/2015 £0.3225 

02/12/11 - 600,000 - - 600,000 - 02/12/2015 £0.144 
Total 
options 256,864 2,000,000  (100,000)  (128,432) 2,028,432       

Weighted 
average 
exercise 
price of 
options 

£nil £0.27 £0.32 £nil £0.25       

 

During the year shares vested on 4 August 2011 and 1 September 2011; the second 
anniversary of the respective scheme above.  The share price at each vesting date was £0.32 
and £0.30 per share respectively. 

 

Outstanding deferred share awards 

During the year shares vested on 30 June 2011.  This was the final vesting of shares under 
this scheme which is now ceased.  The share price on vesting date was £0.33 per share. 

Date of grant 
At 01 
April  
2011 

Granted Vested 
At 31 

March 
2012 

Vesting 
date: From 

Vesting date: 
To 

Record plc Group 
Bonus Scheme       

30/06/09 48,100   - (48,100) - 30/06/2010 30/06/2011 
Total deferred share 
awards 48,100   - (48,100) -   
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The Directors interests in the combined share schemes are as follows: 

 
Ordinary shares held as at 

 
31 March 2012 31 March 2011 

Record plc Group Profit Share Scheme (interest in 
restricted share awards)   

James Wood-Collins 1,229,680 369,403 

Leslie Hill 156,697 - 

Bob Noyen 156,697 - 

Paul Sheriff * 776,910 445,109 

Record plc Share Scheme (interest in unvested 
share options)   

James Wood-Collins 56,748 113,496 

* As permitted by the scheme rules, these shares are held in the name of the Director’s 
spouse. 

Performance measures 

The Approved Option Scheme includes certain performance criteria.  At vesting date, a 
percentage of the total options granted will vest according to the median Total Shareholder 
Return (TSR) as measured against the FTSE 350 General Financial – Price Index.  The 
performance target table is given below: 

Percentage by which Record’s TSR is 
below the median TSR performance of the 
Index 

Percentage of Option which 
vests 

Equal to or above the median TSR 
performance 

100% 

Equal to or above 75% of the median TSR 
performance 

75% 

Equal to or above 50% of the median TSR 
performance 

50% 

Below 50% of the median TSR performance 0% 
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22. Capital redemption reserve 

The Group has previously bought in a total of 202,072 ordinary shares of 10p for cancellation.  
The buy-ins occurred in five tranches, all occurring prior to the share split which occurred 
before admission to the official list of the UK listing authority.  The cost of the buy-ins was 
taken directly to retained earnings.  The nominal value of the shares was taken to a capital 
redemption reserve. 

23. Non-controlling interest 

Three Directors of Record plc and one external investor have purchased units in the three 
funds seeded by Record plc, i.e.  the Record Currency FTSE FRB10 Index Fund, the Record 
Currency Emerging Market Currency Fund, and the Record Currency – Euro Stress Fund.  
The mark to market value of these units represents the only non-controlling interests in the 
Group. 

All three of these funds are considered to be under control of the Group through majority 
interests. 

As at 31 March 2012 the mark to market value of non-controlling interests in Record Currency 
Emerging Market Currency Fund was £1,572,076 (2011: £510,250), the mark to market value 
of non-controlling interests in Record Currency FTSE FRB10 Index Fund was £527,652 
(2011: £442,004), and the mark to market value of non-controlling interests in Record 
Currency – Euro Stress Fund was £163,093 (2011: £nil). 

24. Financial risk management 

The Group’s current activities result in the following financial risks and management 
responses to those risks in order to minimise any resulting adverse effects on the Group’s 
financial performance. 

Objectives, policies and processes for managing risk and the methods 
used to measure the risk 

Financial assets principally comprise trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and 
investments in seed products.  Financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and 
derivative financial liabilities.  The main risks arising from financial instruments are credit risk, 
liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk each of which is discussed in further 
detail below.  The Group monitors and mitigates financial risk on a consolidated basis and 
therefore separate disclosures for the Company have not been included. 

The Group has implemented a framework to manage the risks of its business and to ensure 
that the Directors have in place risk management practices appropriate to a listed company.  
The management of risk is directed by the Board and reviewed by the Audit and Risk 
Committee. 

Credit risk 

Record plc's Risk Management Committee has established a credit risk policy to ensure that 
it only trades with counterparties that meet requirements consistent with the Group’s agreed 
risk appetite.  The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for reviewing the Group's credit 
exposure and ensuring that any credit concerns are raised to the Risk Management 
Committee and that action is taken to mitigate these risks. 

The Group invests some of its surplus funds in high quality liquid market instruments.  Such 
investments have a maturity no greater than three months.  To reduce the risk of counterparty 
default the Group deposits the rest of its surplus funds in approved high quality banks; the 
financial institutions involved have high credit ratings assigned by international credit 
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agencies.  The Group operates a policy of restricting its exposure to any single bank to a 
maximum of £10m. 

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is as follows: 

 

The debtors' age analysis is also evaluated on a regular basis for potential doubtful debts.  It 
is management's opinion that no provision for doubtful debts is required.  The table below is 
an analysis of financial assets by due date: 

 

 

The Group allows an average debtor payment period of 30 days after invoice date.  It is the 
Group's policy to assess debtors for recoverability on an individual basis and to make a 
provision where it is considered necessary.  In assessing recoverability the Group takes into 
account any indicators of impairment up until the reporting date.  The application of this policy 
generally results in debts between 0-3 months overdue not being provided for unless 
individual circumstances indicate that a debt is impaired. 

Trade receivables are made up of 37 debtors' balances (2011: 39).  The largest individual 
debtor corresponds to 33% of the total balance (2011: 37%).  The average age of these 
debtors, based on the generally accepted calculation of debtor days, is 76 days (2011: 81) 
although this ignores the quarterly billing cycle used by the group for the vast majority of its 
fees.  Historically these debtors have always paid balances when due.  No debtors' balances 
have been renegotiated during the year or in the prior year. 

 2012 2011 

Financial assets at 31 March £’000 £’000 

Trade receivables 4,268 6,264  
Other receivables 216 4  
Held for sale financial assets (disposal group) 1,075 3,022  
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 33 - 
Cash and cash equivalents 24,572 24,728  
 30,164 34,018  

 Carrying 
amount

Neither 
impaired nor 

past due
0-3 months 

past due 
More than 
3 months 
past due 

At 31 March 2012 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Trade receivables 4,268 4,182 86 - 

 Carrying 
amount

Neither 
impaired nor 

past due
0-3 months 

past due 
More than 
3 months 
past due 

At 31 March 2011 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Trade receivables 6,264 6,270 - (6) 
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Liquidity risk 

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk, namely that it may be unable to meet its payment 
obligations as they fall due.  The Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities.  
Management review cash flow forecasts on a regular basis to determine whether the Group 
has sufficient cash reserves to meet the future working capital requirements and to take 
advantage of business opportunities.  The average creditor payment period is 16 days (2011: 
22 days). 

Contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities: 

 

 

Interest rate risk  

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated 
with the instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.  Interest rate risk 
arises from interest bearing financial assets and liabilities used by the Group.  Interest bearing 
assets comprise trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents which are considered to be 
short-term liquid assets.  It is the Group's policy to settle trade payables within the credit 
terms allowed and the Group does not therefore incur interest on overdue balances. 

 

 
Carrying 
amount

Due or due 
in less than 

1 month

Due 
between 1 to 

3 months 

Due between 
3 months to 1 

year
At 31 March 2012 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Trade and other payables 331 331 - -
Accruals 1,844 685 1,123 36
Derivative financial liabilities 48 26 22 -

 
Carrying 
amount

Due or due 
in less than 

1 month

Due between 
1 to 3 

months 

Due between 
3 months to 1 

year
At 31 March 2011 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Trade and other payables 859 859 - -
Accruals 2,866 501 2,329 36
Derivative financial liabilities 12 12 - -
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Interest rate exposure 

 Fixed rate Floating rate
Not directly 
exposed to 

interest rate 
risk 

Total

At 31 March 2012 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets 
 

Trade and other receivables - - 4,484  4,484 

Financial assets at fair value  - - 1,108  1,108 

Cash and cash equivalents 21,232 3,340 - 24,572 

Total financial assets 21,232 3,340 5,592  30,164 

Financial liabilities 
 

Financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss - - (48) (48)

Trade and other payables - - (331) (331)

Accruals - - (1,844) (1,844)

Total financial liabilities - - (2,223) (2,223)

 

 Fixed rate Floating rate
Not directly 
exposed to 

interest rate 
risk 

Total

At 31 March 2011 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets 
 

Trade and other receivables - - 6,268  6,268 

Financial assets at fair value  - - 3,022  3,022 

Cash and cash equivalents 23,956 772 - 24,728 

Total financial assets 23,956 772 9,290  34,018 

Financial liabilities 
 

Financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss - - (12) (12)

Trade and other payables - - (859) (859)

Accruals - - (2,866) (2,866)

Total financial liabilities - - (3,737) (3,737)
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis 

 

 

The average rate is calculated as the weighted average effective interest rate.  The tables 
above show the level of profit after tax and equity if interest rates had been 0.5% higher or 
lower with all other variables held constant.  A sensitivity of 0.5% has been selected as this is 
considered reasonable given the current level of both short-term and long-term interest rates. 

Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial commitment or recognised 
asset or liability will fluctuate due to changes in foreign currency rates.  The Group makes use 
of forward exchange contracts to manage the risk relating to future transactions in 
accordance with the Group's risk management policy.  The fair value of the forward contracts 
at 31 March 2012 was an asset of £33,175 (2011: liability of £12,434).  Gains on the forward 
exchange contracts were £68,023 in the year (2011: gain of £262,849).  The future 
transactions related to the forward exchange contracts are expected to occur within the next 
three months.  Changes in the fair values of forward exchange contracts are recognised 
directly in profit or loss. 

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risks on sales and cash holdings that are 
denominated in a currency other than Sterling.  The principal currencies giving rise to this risk 
are primarily the US Dollar, the Swiss Franc, the Euro and the Canadian Dollar.   

In the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group invoiced the following amounts in currencies 
other than Sterling: 

 

   If interest rates were 
0.5% higher 

If interest rates 
were 0.5% lower 

 Carrying 
Amount 

Average 
interest 

rate

Impact on 
Profit After 
Tax for the 

year

Impact 
on Total 

Equity

Impact 
on Profit 

After 
Tax for 

the year 

Impact 
on Total 

Equity

At 31 March 2012 £’000 % £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Cash and cash 
equivalents 24,572 0.76 75 75 (75) (75)

   If interest rates were 
0.5% higher 

If interest rates 
were 0.5% lower 

 Carrying 
Amount 

Average 
interest 

rate

Impact on 
Profit After 
Tax for the 

year

Impact 
on Total 

Equity

Impact 
on Profit 

After 
Tax for 

the year 

Impact 
on Total 

Equity

At 31 March 2011 £’000 % £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Cash and cash 
equivalents 24,728 0.77 109 109 (109) (109)
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The value of revenues for the year ended 31 March 2012 that were denominated in 
currencies other than Sterling was £14.8 million (72% of total revenues).  For the year ended 
31 March 2011: £19.8m (70% of total revenues). 

Record plc's policy is to reduce the risk associated with the Company's sales denominated in 
foreign currencies by using forward fixed rate currency sales contracts, taking into account 
any forecast foreign currency cash flows.   

Foreign currency risk - sensitivity analysis 

 
Impact on Profit 
After Tax for the 
year ended 31 
March 

Impact on Total 
Equity as at 31 
March 

 2012 2011 2012 2011
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
10% weakening in the £/$ exchange rate 778 1,517 778 1,517 

10% strengthening in the £/$ exchange rate  (778) (1,517) (778) (1,517) 

10% weakening in the £/CHF exchange rate 276 384 276 384 

10% strengthening in the £/CHF exchange rate (276) (384) (276) (384) 

10% weakening in the £/CAD$ exchange rate 29 40 29 40 

10% strengthening in the £/CAD$ exchange rate (29) (40) (29) (40) 

10% weakening in the £/€ exchange rate  13 39 13 39 

10% strengthening in the £/€ exchange rate (13) (39) (13) (39) 

 

Sterling/US Dollar exchange rate 

The impact of a change of 10% has been selected as this is considered reasonable given the 
current level of exchange rates and the volatility observed both on a historical basis and 
market expectations for future movement.  When applied to the average Sterling/USD 
exchange rate of $1.578/£ this would result in a weakened exchange rate of $1.435/£ and a 
strengthened exchange rate of $1.754/£.  This range is considered reasonable given the 
historic changes that have been observed.   

Sterling/Swiss Franc exchange rate 

The impact of a change of 10% has been selected as this is considered reasonable given the 
current level of exchange rates and the volatility observed both on a historical basis and 
market expectations for future movement.  When applied to the average Sterling/CHF 

 
Local 

currency 
value

Value in 
reporting 
currency 

 ‘000 £’000 
US Dollar (USD) 16,602 10,518 
Swiss Franc (CHF) 5,267 3,733 
Canadian Dollar (CAD) 625 394 
Euro (EUR) 207 179 
Australian Dollar (AUD) 25 16 
Total  14,840 
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exchange rate of CHF1.411/£ this would result in a weakened exchange rate of CHF1.283/£ 
and a strengthened exchange rate of CHF1.568/£.  This range is considered reasonable 
given the historic changes that have been observed.   

Sterling/Canadian Dollar exchange rate 

The impact of a change of 10% has been selected as this is considered reasonable given the 
current level of exchange rates and the volatility observed both on a historical basis and 
market expectations for future movement.  When applied to the average Sterling/CAD 
exchange rate of CAD$1.586/£ this would result in a weakened exchange rate of 
CAD$1.442/£ and a strengthened exchange rate of CAD$1.763/£.  This range is considered 
reasonable given the historic changes that have been observed.   

Sterling/Euro exchange rate 

The impact of a change of 10% has been selected as this is considered reasonable given the 
current level of exchange rates and the volatility observed both on a historical basis and 
market expectations for future movement.  When applied to the average Sterling/Euro 
exchange rate of €1.156/£ this would result in a weakened exchange rate of €1.051/£ and a 
strengthened exchange rate of €1.285/£.  This range is considered reasonable given the 
historic changes that have been observed. 

FTSE FRB10 Index Fund 

The Group seeded a product in December 2010, which is a fund that tracks the FTSE 
Currency FRB10 Index by holding a portfolio of developed market currency deliverable 
forward exchange contracts. As Record plc exerts significant control over the fund, it has 
been consolidated into the Group's primary statements. The net assets of the fund at 31 
March 2012 were £1,605,646 (2011: Investment recognised as asset held for sale of 
£1,485,369). The Group has provided the following data in respect of sensitivity to this 
product. 

 

 

The impact of a change to the index of 10% has been selected as this is considered 
reasonable given the current level of exchange rates and the volatility observed both on a 
historical basis and market expectations for future movement.   

Emerging markets currencies 

The Group seeded a product in December 2010 called the Emerging Market Currency Fund, 
which manages a portfolio of emerging market currency deliverable forward exchange 
contracts and emerging market currency non-deliverable forward exchange contracts in order 

 Impact on 
Profit After 
Tax for the 
year ended 

31 March 
2012

Impact on 
Profit After 
Tax for the 
year ended 

31 March 
2011 

Impact on 
Total Equity 

as at 31 
March 2012 

Impact on 
Total Equity 

as at 31 
March 2011

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
10% depreciation in the FTSE 
Currency FRB10 Index  (119) (267) (119) (267) 

10% appreciation in the FTSE 
Currency FRB10 Index  119 267 119 267 
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to achieve a return. As Record plc exerts significant control over the fund, it has been 
consolidated into the Group's primary statements. The net assets of the fund at 31 March 
2012 were £2,561,091 (2011: Investment recognised as asset held for sale of £1,537,178). 
The Group has provided the following data in respect of sensitivity to this product. 

 

 Impact on 
Profit After 
Tax for the 

year ended 31 
March 2012

Impact on 
Profit After 
Tax for the 

year ended 31 
March 2011 

Impact on 
Total Equity 

as at 31 
March 2012 

Impact on 
Total Equity 

as at 31 
March 2011

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
20% depreciation in the 
Emerging Market portfolio (379) (307) (379) (307) 

20% appreciation in the 
Emerging Market portfolio 379 307 379 307 

 

The impact of a change to the portfolio value of 20% has been selected as this is considered 
reasonable given the current level of exchange rates and the volatility observed both on a 
historical basis and expectations for future movement in emerging markets. 

Euro Stress Fund 

The Group has seeded a new fund, the Euro Stress Fund, which allocates spending across a 
range of liquid financial instruments, with a view to taking advantage of both risks which have 
not been fully priced-in by the market and the wide range of views in the market concerning 
the viability of the Euro.  The value of the Group’s investment as at 31 March 2012 was 
£1,074,509.  The investment is recognised as an asset held for sale and as such, all gains 
and losses are recognised through profit or loss.  The Group has provided the following data 
in respect of sensitivity to this product trial.  As the product trial started in June 2011, no 
comparative data is provided. 

 Impact on 
Profit After 
Tax for the 
year ended 

31 March 
2012

Impact on 
Total Equity 

as at 31 
March 2012 

 £’000 £’000 
20% depreciation in the Euro Stress portfolio (159) (159) 
20% appreciation in the Euro Stress portfolio 159 159 

 

The impact of a change to the portfolio value of 20% has been selected as this is considered 
reasonable given the current level of exchange rates and the volatility observed both on a 
historical basis and expectations for future movement in the underlying instruments which 
make up the Euro Stress portfolio. 

25. Additional financial instruments disclosures 

Financial instruments measured at fair value 
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IFRS 7 (Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments), requires the Group to present 
certain information about financial instruments measured at fair value in the statement of 
financial position. 

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the 
consolidated statement of financial position in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.  This 
hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three levels based on the significance of 
inputs used in measuring the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities.  The fair value 
hierarchy has the following levels: 

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from 
prices); and 

 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). 

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on the 
lowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement.  The financial assets and 
liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into the fair 
value hierarchy as follows: 

 

 

There have been no transfers between levels in the reporting period (2011: none). 

Basis for classification of financial instruments within the fair value hierarchy 

(a) Forward foreign exchange contracts 

Forward foreign exchange contracts are classified as level 2.  Although these instruments are 
traded on an active market, the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is established 
using interpolation of observable market data rather than from a quoted price.  All forward 
foreign exchange contracts are strictly short-term in duration. 

  2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
 Note £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss    
Forward foreign exchange contracts used for seeded funds a (48) - (48) -
Forward foreign exchange contracts used for hedging a 33 - 33 -
Assets held for sale (disposal group) b 1,075 - 1,075 -
  1,060 - 1,060 -

  2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
 Note £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss    
Forward foreign exchange contracts used for hedging a (12) - (12) -
Assets held for sale (disposal group) b 3,022 - 3,022 -
  3,010 - 3,010 -
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(b) Held for sale investments 

Record plc has invested in two new funds, the Record Currency - FTSE FRB10 Index Fund 
which is priced daily and the Record Currency - Emerging Market Fund which is priced 
fortnightly.  However, the funds are not actively traded and, according to the Directors’ 
interpretation of the standard, the investments in the funds are most appropriately categorised 
as level 2. 

Classes and fair value of financial instruments 

Financial assets 

 

Financial liabilities 

 

It is the Directors' opinion that the carrying value of trade receivables and trade payables 
approximates to their fair value. 

 At 31 March 2012 At 31 March 2011 

 Carrying 
value

Fair 
value

Carrying 
value

Fair 
value 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Assets held for sale 1,075 1,075 3,022 3,022 
Derivative financial instruments at 
fair value through profit or loss 33 33 - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 24,572 24,572 24,728 24,728 

 At 31 March 2012 At 31 March 2011 

 Carrying 
value

Fair 
value

Carrying 
value

Fair 
value 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Derivative financial instruments at 
fair value through profit or loss 48 48 12 12 
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Categories of financial instrument 

 Note Loans and 
receivables

Financial 
liabilities 

measured 
at 

amortised 
cost

Assets at 
fair value 

through 
profit or 

loss 

Derivatives 
used for 
hedging 

Held for 
sale

At 31 March 2012  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Disposal group 18 - - - - 1,075
Trade and other 
receivables (excludes 
prepayments) 

15 4,484 - - - -

Cash and cash 
equivalents 17 24,572 - - - -

Other financial 
instruments at fair value 
through profit or loss 

16, 
19 - - (48) 33 -

Current trade and other 
payables 19 - (331) - - -

Accruals 19 - (1,844) - - -
  29,056 (2,175) (48) 33 1,075

 

 

26. Operating lease commitments 

On 25 January 2006, the Group signed a lease on new premises at Morgan House, Madeira 
Walk, Windsor, Berkshire.  This lease expires on 19 June 2016.  The annual commitment 
under this lease is £229,710 (2011: £229,710).  The Group’s lease on the premises at 32 
Peascod Street, Windsor, Berkshire which expired in December 2011, had a commitment of 
£86,000 per annum (2011: £86,000).  Those premises were sublet at the same rate from May 
2006 until termination. 

 Note Loans and 
receivables

Financial 
liabilities 

measured 
at 

amortised 
cost

Assets at 
fair value 

through 
profit or 

loss 

Derivatives 
used for 
hedging 

Held for 
sale

At 31 March 2011  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Disposal group 18 - - - - 3,022
Trade and other 
receivables (excludes 
prepayments) 

15 6,268 - - - -

Cash and cash 
equivalents 17 24,728 - - - -

Other financial 
instruments at fair value 
through profit or loss 

19 - - - (12) -

Current trade and other 
payables 19 - (859) - - -

Accruals 19 - (2,866) - - -
  30,996 (3,725) - (12) 3,022
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At 31 March 2012 the Group had commitments under non-cancellable operating leases 
relating to land and buildings as set out below: 

 

The total of future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under non-
cancellable subleases at the reporting dates: 

 

27. Related parties transactions 

Company 

Details of transactions between the Company and other Group undertakings, which are 
related parties of the Company, are shown below: 

Transactions with subsidiaries 

The Company’s subsidiary undertakings are listed in note 13, which includes a description of 
the nature of their business. 

 2012 2011 
 £'000 £'000 
Amounts due from subsidiaries 654 - 
Amounts due to subsidiaries 948 10 
Interest received from subsidiaries on 
intercompany loan balances 5 - 

Net dividends received from subsidiaries 8,610 5,723 

 

Transactions with Record Currency Fund - Euro Stress 

Record plc, together with Mr N. P. Record who is a related party, are invested in the Record 
Currency Fund - Euro Stress. Record plc and Mr N. P. Record hold all the issued units in the 

 2012 2011 
 £’000 £’000 
Not later than one year 230 237 
Later than one year and not later than 
five years 747 919 

Later than five years - 57 
 977 1,213 

 2012 2011 
 £’000 £’000 
Not later than one year - 65 
Later than one year and not later than 
five years - - 

 - 65 
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fund.  Record plc therefore exerts a significant influence over the Record Currency Fund - 
Euro Stress, so it is considered to be a related party to Record plc and its subsidiaries.  
Details of transactions between the Company and Record Currency Fund - Euro Stress are 
shown below: 

 

Amounts owed to and by related parties are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms 
of repayment.  The balances will be settled in cash.  No guarantees have been given or 
received.  No provisions for doubtful debts have been raised against amounts outstanding, 
and no expense has been recognised during the period in respect of bad or doubtful debts 
due from related parties. 

Transactions with Record Currency – FTSE FRB10 Index Fund 

Record plc, together with Mr N. P. Record who is a related party, hold all the issued units in 
the Record Currency – FTSE FRB10 Index Fund.  As Record plc therefore exerts a significant 
influence over the Record Currency – FTSE FRB10 Index Fund, it is considered to be a 
related party to Record plc and its subsidiaries.  Details of transactions between the Company 
and Record Currency – FTSE FRB10 Index Fund are shown below: 

 2012 2011

 £’000 £’000

Investment in Record Currency – FTSE FRB10 Index Fund at 
cost 1,004 1,004

 

Transactions with Record Currency – Emerging Market Currency Fund 

Record plc, together with Mr N. P. Record, Mr B. Noyen and Mrs L. Hill who are related 
parties, hold the majority of the issued units in the Record Currency – Emerging Market 
Currency Fund.  As Record plc therefore exerts a significant influence over the Record 
Currency – Emerging Market Currency Fund, it is considered to be a related party to Record 
plc and its subsidiaries.  Details of transactions between the Company and Record Currency 
– Emerging Market Currency Fund are shown below: 

 2012 2011

 £’000 £’000

Investment in Record Currency – Emerging Market Currency 
Fund at cost 1,000 1,000

 

 2012 2011

 £’000 £’000

Investment in Record Currency Fund - Euro Stress at cost 1,000 -
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Group 

Transactions or balances between Group entities have been eliminated on consolidation and 
in accordance with IAS 24, are not disclosed in this note. 

The compensation given to key management personnel is as follows: 

 

 Directors’ remuneration 

 2012 2011 

 £’000 £’000 

Aggregate emoluments of the Directors  
Emoluments (excluding pension 
contribution) 2,618 3,463 

Gains made on exercise of share options 18 26 

Pension contribution 146 126 

 

During the year, four Directors of the Company (2011: four) participated in the Group 
Personal Pension Plan, a defined contribution scheme. 

28. Ultimate controlling party 

As at 31 March 2012 the Company had no ultimate controlling party, nor at 31 March 2011. 

29. Capital management 

The Company's objectives when managing capital are (i) to safeguard the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, (ii) to provide an adequate return to its shareholders, and 
(iii) to meet regulatory capital requirements set by the UK Financial Services Authority (FSA). 

The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk.  The Company manages the 
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and 
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.  In order to maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders, or issue new shares.  The Company had no debt in the current or 
prior financial year and consequently does not calculate a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. 

 2012 2011 

 £’000 £’000 

Short-term employee benefits 4,007 4,953  

Post-employment benefits 342 296  

Share-based payments 1,057 1,654  

Dividends 3,792 2,907  

 9,198 9,810  
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For regulatory capital purposes Record plc is subject to consolidated financial supervision by 
the FSA.  Our regulatory capital requirements are in accordance with FSA rules consistent 
with the Capital Requirements Directive.  Our financial resources have exceeded our financial 
resource requirements (regulatory capital requirements) at all times during the year.  Further 
information is provided in the Business Review. 

30. Post reporting date events 

No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date 
and the date of authorisation. 

31. Statutory Accounts 

This statement was approved by the Board on 11 June 2012.  The financial information set 
out above does not constitute the company's statutory accounts.  The statutory accounts for 
the financial year ended 31 March 2011 have been delivered to the Registrar of Companies 
and received an audit report which was unqualified, did not include a reference to any matters 
to which the auditor drew attention by way of emphasis without qualifying the report, and did 
not contain statements under section 498(2) or 498(3) of the Companies Act 2006. 

The statutory accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 received an audit report 
which was unqualified, did not include a reference to any matters to which the auditor drew 
attention by way of emphasis without qualifying the report, and did not contain statements 
under section 498(2) or 498(3) of the Companies Act 2006, and will be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies. 

Notes to Editors 

This announcement includes information with respect to Record’s financial condition, its 
results of operations and business, strategy, plans and objectives.  All statements in this 
document, other than statements of historical fact, including words such as “anticipates”, 
“expects”, “intends”, “plans”, “believes”, “seeks”, “estimates”, “may”, “will”, “continue”, “project” 
and similar expressions, are forward-looking statements. 

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of the Company’s future performance 
and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions that could cause the actual future 
results, performance or achievements of the Company to differ materially from those 
expressed in or implied by such forward-looking statements. 

The forward-looking statements contained in this document are based on numerous 
assumptions regarding Record’s present and future business and strategy and speak only as 
at the date of this announcement. 

The Company expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to disseminate any updates 
or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained in this announcement whether as a 
result of new information, future events or otherwise. 


